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1.1

ORGANISATIONAL OVERVIEW

REPORT PROFILE
This report outlines an integrated reporting on Msinsi
strategies and activities for the year that ended
30 June 2017.
It encompasses financial and non-financial information,
including the organisational and strategic overview,
divisional reports on achievements in the Operations;
Risk; Human Resources; Marketing and Stakeholder;
Corporate Social Investment; and Environmental
Education functional areas.
The corporate governance report presents individual
Board Members’ profiles and meeting attendance whilst
organisational performance presents performance against
predetermined objectives and financial reports.
The Annual Financial Statements presented in this report
were audited by SM Xulu Inc.

Msinsi Holdings’ integrated annual report complies
with the statutory disclosure requirements of the Public
Finance Management Act (Act 1 of 1999) and Companies
Act. Furthermore it is aligned with the recommendations of
King III regarding integrated reporting.
The performance content of this annual report presents
Msinsi Holdings’ progress towards meeting predetermined
objectives as per the Annual Performance Plan of the
period under review.
The Board acknowledges its responsibility for ensuring
the integrity of this annual report.  This annual report
addresses all material issues and fairly presents the
integrated performance of the organisation and its
impacts. The assurance of the annual report for both
performance and financial information is provided by
Internal Audit and the Audit Committee of the Board.

The Board confirms to have approved the release of the 2016/2017 annual report.
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Additional information pertaining to this report and its contents can be obtained from Msinsi Holdings Head Office at this address:
Physical Address:
Msinsi Holdings (SOC) Ltd
Unit 1 & 2, Block C, , 18 Old Main Road, Hillcrest, 3650
Postal Address:
Private Bag X 1020, Hillcrest, 3650
Telephone number: 031 765 7724, Fax number: 031 765 7704
Email: info@msinsi.co.za, Website: www.msinsi.co.za
Company Secretary
Mr Sbusiso Madonsela
Umgeni Water Head Office, P.O. Box 9, Pietermaritzburg, 3200
Tel: +27 (33) 341 1544 /1066, Fax: +27 (33) 342 8895
Company Registration Number: 1992 / 003933/30
VAT Number: 443 0133 779

Msinsi Annual Report 2017

5

1.2 ORGANISATIONAL PROFILE

MSINSI’S BROAD FUNCTIONS

HISTORY

Water Resource Management

Msinsi Holdings SOC Limited, trading
as Msinsi Resorts and Game Reserves,
was established on 13 July 1992;
and underwent a name change
from Shongweni Resources Reserve
(Proprietary) Limited  to Msinsi Holdings
(Proprietary) Limited on
25 March 1994.
The company converted from a
Proprietary (PTY) Limited to a StateOwned Company (SOC) Limited with
effect from 23 June 2014.

Water resource management is central to achieving economic growth,
sustainable development and poverty reduction.  
The primary function of Msinsi is to manage the water resources of Umgeni
Water owned dams and the dams that Umgeni Water manages on behalf of
the Department of Water and Sanitation.  Effective management of the water
resource contributes significantly to the value chain of water service delivery.  
Therefore, Msinsi, through its activities, implements the dictates of the National
Water Act; Act 36 of 1998 i.e. that national water resources are protected, used,
developed, conserved, managed and controlled in an efficient and sustainable
manner.  These dictates are consolidated into three strategic objectives of the
National Water Resource Strategy 2 (NWRS2) viz.:
•

Water supports development and reduction of poverty and inequality.

•

Water contributes to the economy and job creation.

•

Water is protected, used, developed, conserved, managed and controlled in
an equitable and sustainable manner.

Msinsi’s functions are categorised into three broad areas, namely:
•

Protect the aquatic and associated ecosystems and their biological diversity.

•

Reduce and prevent pollution and degradation of the water resources.

•

Allow and control access to the dams for recreational purposes, and apply
reasonable charges for the use of entry and onto the water surface.

These functions are performed in pursuit of the objectives of
the NWRS2.
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Table 1.1 below indicates Msinsi’s functional areas emanating from the abovementioned broad areas:

BIODIVERSITY MANAGEMENT:

POLLUTION CONTROL:

•

Alien plant eradication

*

•

Fire management

•

Wildlife and Habitat Management

•

Resource Utilization

•

Land and Resource rehabilitation

•

Environmental Impact Assessment

•

Manage neighbour relations

•

Inspections and security patrols

•

Water quality monitoring

•

Fence Maintenance

Waste Management

VISITOR ACCESS CONTROL:

FACILITIES MANAGEMENT:

•

Visitor Facilities, Campground

•

Roads

and Picnic Sites access control

•

Slipways

•

Visitor Safety and Protection

•

Buildings and Grounds

•

Visitor Education and Interpretation

•

Entrance Fee Collection

CORPORATE SOCIAL INVESTMENT:

PARKS MANAGEMENT:

•

Environmental Education

•

Finance

•

Corporate Social Investment initiatives

•

Human Resources

•

Stakeholder Engagement

•

Risk

•

Fleet Management

		

TOURISM MANAGEMENT:
•

Accommodation

•

Special events and activities

Table 1.1: Msinsi Functional Areas
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Biodiversity refers to the variety of all forms of life on earth, including the different plants, animals, micro-organisms, the genes they
contain and the ecosystem they form.  
Biodiversity is considered at three main levels indicated in the table below:

LEVEL OF BIODIVERSITY

DESCRIPTION

Genetic Biodiversity

Variation of genes within species and populations

Species Diversity

Variety of species or the living organisms

Ecosystem Biodiversity

Variety of ecosystems in a particular area e.g. forests,
wetlands, grasslands etc.

Table 1.2: Levels of Biodiversity

Biodiversity provides ecosystem services discussed below:

•

Provisioning Services
The supply of goods of direct benefit to people e.g. timber from forests, medicinal plants, and fish from the oceans, rivers and lakes

•

Regulating Services
Ecosystem functions that include regulation of climate, rainfall, air and water quality, pollination etc.

•

Cultural Services
Ecosystem services that are of, among others, spiritual and aesthetic value to people

•

Supporting services
Ecosystem services that is essential to the functioning of other ecosystem services e.g. nutrient and water cycling, photosynthesis,
soil formation etc.

Protection of biodiversity ensures sustainable provision of ecosystem services. Therefore, Msinsi’s role in biodiversity management
contributes to sustainable provision of ecosystem services.

8

Msinsi Annual Report 2017

2

STRATEGIC OVERVIEW

2.1 VISION, MISSION, STRATEGIC INTENT, AND BENEVOLENT INTENT
Msinsi’s vision, mission, strategic intent and benevolent intent is illustrated below:

VISION

MISSION

To be the
water resource
management
agency of choice in
the Water Sector

We manage
the water
resources and
the environment
around dams,
and ensure
their protection,
development,
effective use
and ecological
sustainability

STRATEGIC
INTENT

BENEVOLENT
INTENT

Key Partner that
enables Water
Utilities to enhance
water service
delivery.

Provide
environmental
management
services to
improve quality of
life and enhance
local economic
development.

Figure 2.1: Vision, Mission, Strategic Intent and Benevolent Intent

2.2 BALANCED SCORECARD
CUSTOMER
AND
STAKEHOLDER
PERSPECTIVE
Strategic Objective:
Increase services
and customers

FINANCIAL
PERSPECTIVE

PROCESS
PERSPECTIVE

Strategic Objective:
Increase financial
viability

Strategic Objective:
Improve all key
systems

Strategic Objective:
Increase customer
and stakeholder
value

ORGANISATIONAL
CAPACITY
PERSPECTIVE
Strategic Objective:
Improve infrastructure
assets
Strategic objective:
Improve skills and
competency

Figure 2.2 Balanced Scorecard Perspectives
Msinsi Annual Report 2017
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2.3 VALUES
CUSTOMER CENTRIC

INTEGRITY

We will partner with Umgeni Water,
communities and other stakeholders to
provide sustainable solutions.

We commit ourselves to the highest
ethical conduct.

DEVELOPMENTAL APPROACH

We deliver solutions consistent with the
development agenda of the country.

PEOPLE CENTRIC

We value and respect all people
equally, cultivate accountability and
engage the will of all our people.

ENVIRONMENTALLY
SUSTAINABLE

We are committed to protecting our
diminishing natural resources.

INNOVATION AND EXCELLENCE

We value the use of innovation in order
to achieve excellence.

Figure 2.3: Msinsi Holdings Values
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2.4 MSINSI’S MANDATE
Msinsi Holdings SOC Ltd is a Schedule 3B Public Entity under the PFMA, by virtue of it being a wholly owned subsidiary of
Umgeni Water. The mandate of Msinsi is as follows:
•

Biodiversity management (to protect the aquatic and associated ecosystems and their biological diversity);

•

Pollution control (to reduce and prevent pollution and degradation of the water resources);

•

Tourism management (to allow and control access to the dams for recreational purposes, and make reasonable charges
for the use of, and entry onto, the water surface).

The legislative mandate; scope; reporting requirements and operating
processes of Msinsi are guided by the following South African legislation:
•

The National Water Act (No. 36 of 1998)

•

National Treasury Regulation of 1999

•

King III Report on Corporate Governance of 2009

•

The Companies Act (No. 71 of 2008)

•

International Financial Reporting Standards

•

National Environmental Management Act - NEMA (No. 107 of 1998)

•

NEMA: Protected Areas Management Act (No. 57 of 2003)

•

NEMA: Biodiversity Act (No. 10 of 2004)

•

Firearms Control Act (No. 60 of 2000)

•

Public Finance Management Act (No. 1 of 1999)

•

Veld and Forest Fire Act (No. 101 of 1998)

•

South African Labour Laws

Bon Accorde Conference Centre

Msinsi Annual Report 2017
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2.5 BUSINESS MODEL
Office of the Managing Director: Overall Accountability and Strategic Effectiveness

Operations:
• Water Resource Management
• Biodiversity Management
• Pollution Control
• Visitor Management and
Access Control  Management

Corporate Services
Finance:
Accounting
& Financial
Management

Human
Resources

Supply Chain
Management
Marketing

Internal Audit, Risk Management, ICT and Engineering support by
the Parent Company

Msinsi manages the following dams on behalf of Umgeni Water:
•

Albert Falls Dam

•

Nagle Dam

•

Inanda Dam

•

Shongweni Dam

•

Hazelmere Dam

•

Spring Grove Dam

Note: At Spring Grove Dam there are no tourism activities; for now, Msinsi is mainly responsible for undertaking
biodiversity work such as fire management, alien plant control and monitoring. Patrols are also undertaken to ensure
that people do not enter the dam unlawfully.
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Name of a dam
GPS Coordinates
Year of
		acquisition

Dam size in ha.

Land size in ha.

Total size in ha.

Albert Falls Dam & Game
Reserve was acquired from
EKZN Wildlife

29.4500° S
30.4000° E

1996

2274

3090 plus 684 ha.
Leased = 3774

3774

Bon Accorde Resort was acquired

29.4344° S

2005

Inclusive at

31

31 (land only)

from Bill Chalmers

30.4269° E

Nagle Dam & Game Reserve

29.5836° S
30.6169° E

1994

184

2288

2472

Inanda Dam & Resort was acquired
from EKZN Wildlife

29.7003° S
30.8669° E

1996

1469

63

1532

Shongweni Dam & Game Reserve

29.8567° S
30.7213° E

1992, successful
Community land
claim in 2013

51

1649

1700

Hazelmere Dam & Resort
was acquired from EKZN Wildlife

29.6003° S
31.0417° E

1996

218

132

350

Spring Grove Dam

29.3240° S
29.9437° E

2013

1022

-

1022

Albert Falls

Table 2.1 Dams, Capacities and Land Size

Figure2.5 Graphical Presentation of % Dam and Land Size
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MSINSI MANAGED DAMS

Figure 2.6 Location of Msinsi managed dams

Revenue Streams
Msinsi earns revenue from two streams, namely the Water Resource
(Environmental) Management Fee and Ecotourism.  Msinsi performs
water resource management functions on behalf of Umgeni Water on the
basis of the service level agreement.  Umgeni Water pays a management
fee to Msinsi for services rendered for water resource management.  
This revenue is revised annually and presented to Umgeni Water for
consideration and approval.  In this regard, the cash flow of this revenue
stream becomes predictable during the financial year.  
Ecotourism revenue is generated from utilising the dams and other
facilities for tourism purposes. Revenues from ecotourism activities are
unpredictable due to dependence on factors such as economic conditions,
seasons, and weather conditions among others.  Msinsi also has a Wild
Card product, operated in partnership with SANParks.  Msinsi earns a
share of sales achieved through the Wild Card product.  

14
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ORGANISATIONAL STRUCTURE (MANAGEMENT)
Board
Chairman

Managing
Director

Divisional
Head:
Corporate
Services

Finance
Manager

Human
Resources
& Admin
Manager
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Divisional
Head:
Operations

Marketing &
Stakeholder
Manager

Reserve
Manager:
Albert Falls

Reserve
Manager:
Inanda Dam

Reserve
Manager:
Nagle Dam

Reserve
Manager:
Hazelmere
Dam
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2.6 CHAIRMAN’S REPORT

I am pleased to present the Chairman’s Report for the year ended 30 June 2017.  
In this report I will provide a strategic overview of the company performance, as well as touch on some
of the highlights of the year.
Msinsi continued to successfully deliver on its mandate for the period under review. The drought
situation in the province of KwaZulu-Natal is not improving, and this places the water resources at
an even higher risk of pollution and further resource quality deterioration. It is in this regard that
more effort is needed to protect, utilise, control and conserve the water resources in an efficient and
sustainable manner.  Msinsi Holdings’ mandate to protect and enhance the natural environment around
Umgeni Water owned or managed dams is vital to the achievement of Umgeni Water’s mandate.

16
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Msinsi also plays a pivotal role in protecting the
valuable pockets of biodiversity around Umgeni
Water managed dams. The reserve areas being
managed by Msinsi are an important tourism and
recreational asset for the people of KwaZulu-Natal.  
Every year, thousands of visitors visit the dams to
enjoy a range of recreational activities that include
water sports, nature-based tourism, adventure
sports and music festivals.  Commercialisation and
making these areas accessible to all is in line with
the objectives of the National Water Resources
Strategy of supporting development and reduction
of poverty and inequality.

This financial year also saw a high level of staff
turnover at Executive level.  I am pleased to
report that the Board has been able to fill these
vacancies of two Executives. In this regard we
welcomed Ms. Mbali Ngubane, as the Divisional
Head: Corporate Services, and Mr Mboniseni
Dlamini, as the Managing Director. Both bring
with them a wealth of experience to enhance the
Executive Management level. The recruitment of
the Divisional Head: Operations was concluded
after the end of the reporting financial year and
the incumbent is expected to commence duties in
the first quarter of 2017/18 financial year.  

I will now report on Msinsi’s performance. Msinsi
operates in a highly volatile tourism market,
aggravated by the drought that saw dam levels not
recovering in terms of water levels.

Msinsi continues to implement its comprehensive
Stakeholder Management Plan in order to ensure
that we maintain relationships with our major
stakeholders. The key stakeholders include
Umgeni Water, The Department of Water and
Sanitation, Provincial and National Tourism bodies,
Ezemvelo KZN Wildlife, South African National
Parks, as well as Traditional and Community
leaders in the areas in which we operate. The
Corporate Social Investment initiatives continue to
ensure that Msinsi plays an important role helping
local communities with community development
initiatives.

This resulted in a decrease in visitor numbers,
and ultimately Msinsi generated tourism revenue
of R14.1 million, against budgeted revenue of
R19.6 million.  The drop in visitor numbers was
significant on high revenue products such as Wild
Card, accommodation and picnic products.  Our
partnership in the Wild Card programme continues
to bear fruit, with Wild Card revenue being one of
the few areas where we saw an increase. For the
period under review, the Company posted a total
comprehensive loss of R12.6 million. This was
against a budgeted loss of R283 000.
The company achieved overall performance
of 85% of the targets set in the Annual
Performance Plan for the 2016/2017 financial
year. It is pleasing to note significant progress
in the utilisation of the R30 million CAPEX
budget towards improving infrastructure and
implementing revenue enhancement projects for
the organisation. We are optimistic that these
new developments, coupled with new marketing
initiatives, will see an improvement in revenue in
2017/18 financial year.

In conclusion, I would like to thank my fellow
board members for their support. My gratitude
also to the Management and staff of Msinsi for
their hard work and commitment.

Mr Thami Hlongwa
Interim Chairman: Msinsi Holdings SOC Ltd

We are pleased to report that Msinsi received an
unqualified audit from the external auditors even
though the organisation missed the target of a
clean audit.  Msinsi’s status as a ‘going concern’
is dependent on the Annual Management fee it
receives from Umgeni Water.  We are grateful to
Umgeni Water for providing an Annual Letter
of Support to Msinsi to confirm its going
concern status.

Msinsi Annual Report 2017
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2.7 MANAGING DIRECTOR’S REPORT

This report details performance of Msinsi Holdings SOC Ltd for the 2016/17 financial year. The Board
of Msinsi approved the Annual Performance Plan that comprised 6 strategic objectives and 24 Planned
Indicators, which informed the organisation’s performance for the period under review. Management
executed the Annual Performance Plan and monitored performance against predetermined strategic
objectives, which are presented in detail in this report. The predetermined strategic objectives are
aligned to the four Balanced Scorecard perspectives, being Customer and Stakeholder, Finance,
Processes, and Organisational Capacity.
Msinsi achieved 85% overall performance during
the 2016/17 financial year.  This is a significant
drop in performance of 91% achieved in the
previous year. The adverse variance of 15% is
primarily as a result of not achieving financial
targets, achieving an unqualified audit opinion
against the target of clean audit opinion, not
reviewing operational management plans, and
not implementing revenue-generating project
activities at Shongweni Reserve.
The drop in performance is attributed to adverse
economic conditions, which impacted negatively
on revenue targets.  Furthermore, the high
turnover at executive management level also
contributed to the performance outcomes of
2016/17.  However, the Board has since filled
all executive vacancies during the Q3 and Q4
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of the period under review.  Msinsi is therefore
expecting to improve its performance levels in the
2017/18 financial year.  
Msinsi reports a comprehensive loss of R12.6
million for the year ended 30 June 2017, whilst
comprehensive loss for the previous financial year
amounted to R5.8 million. The contributors to
this loss are expenditure amounts of R6.3 million
against the R30 million capital contribution from
Umgeni Water, and not achieving the revenue
targets. Revenue deficit from budget amounted to
R4.5 million during the year under review.  Plans
have also been implemented to address declining
revenue in the new financial year. These initiatives
are revenue enhancement and cost containment.  

Msinsi Annual Report 2017

Revenue enhancement initiatives include intensifying marketing initiatives to increase the traffic
of guests to Msinsi’s facilities. The Club EDEN project, infrastructure upgrade and introducing new
products are among initiatives aimed at improving Msinsi’s revenue. All of these initiatives are
expected to be fully implemented in the new financial year.

The Club EDEN project is aimed at creating and
growing a database community that is educated
about nature and individual benefits that can be
derived from nature, hence the catch-phrase of
“Wellness Through Nature” for this initiative.  It
is expected that this project will deliver not only
growth of visitor numbers but also loyalty to
Msinsi and its product offerings. Among the new
products introduced are the LIFESTYLE LOUNGE
at Hazelmere Dam Reserve; CRUISE BOAT at
Inanda Dam Reserve; CONFERENCE CENTRE at
Albert Falls Dam Reserve. It is expected that the
new products will enhance visitor experience of
Msinsi’s facilities.  
These projects were funded by the capital
contribution from the Parent Company, Umgeni
Water. In terms of our existing products, the
Wild Card facility remains the highest generator
of revenue followed by Accommodation, Gate
Takings and Camping.  The Wild Card is the
access and loyalty programme which entitles
members access to participating Protected Areas
and it is administered by SANParks.  
On the biodiversity side of the business, the KZN
Province has experienced an escalation of rhino
poaching during the month of May 2017.  Msinsi
lost 3 of its rhinos due to poaching during the
above-mentioned period.  Msinsi is reviewing, and
will continue to review reserve security plans in
order to mitigate loss of wildlife
through poaching.  
Success has been achieved in respect of water
resource management activities as stipulated in
the Service Level Agreement (SLA) with Umgeni
Water.  Forty eight out of 50 SLA activities were
achieved as per the review conducted with
Umgeni Water’s Executive Committee.  In this
regard, Msinsi is pleased to have contributed
effectively to the water service delivery value
chain of Umgeni Water.   
The drought continued during the year under
review and this resulted in a decline of water
sport activities due to low water levels in the
dams.  Our marketing activities consistently work
towards maintaining the right product mix to suit
Msinsi’s operating environment.   The raising of
the Hazelmere dam wall will increase the water
level and submerge picnic land of the Hazelmere
Reserve.  Although picnic activities will be
adversely affected, water sport activities - which

Msinsi Annual Report 2017

are ranked one position behind camping (in terms
of revenue generation) - are expected to increase.
Hence the impact of raising Hazelmere dam wall is
expected to be insignificant on Msinsi revenues.  
Msinsi is also pleased to have maintained the
3-star grading of its ecotourism facilities at Albert
Falls, Bon Accorde and Nagle Dam Reserves.
It is also important to report that plans to
hand over the Shongweni Reserve operations
to the Zwelibomvu Community Trust have
gained traction during the year under review.  
It is expected that the hand-over plan will be
concluded in the second quarter of the 2017/18
financial year.
Msinsi has interacted with a number of
stakeholders during the year under review,
and all of them have delivered value to Msinsi’s
operations.  In this regard, I hereby acknowledge
the following stakeholders:
• Amakhosi in our areas of operation for their
support towards achieving stability of Msinsi’s
operations within their areas.
• Municipalities for supporting Msinsi both as
stakeholder and customer.
• Tourism Bodies for collaboration and exchange
of ideas to achieve growth among members in the
Tourism Sector
• Media for support in enhancing Msinsi’s brand
• Umgeni Water for issuing and supporting
Msinsi’s mandate
• The Board of Msinsi for directing Msinsi to
achieve and stay relevant to its mandate
• NEHAWU and Msinsi employees for their effort
towards achieving Msinsi’s objectives, although
more effort is still required to achieve the desired
state of the organisation.  

Mboniseni Dlamini

• Msinsi’s Executive Committee’s support and
execution of the mandate of the organisation.

Mr Mboniseni Dlamini
Managing Director
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3

GOVERNANCE

3.1 BOARD CHARTER
The Board Charter provides the Board with the framework of responsibilities and fiduciary duties.
The Board of Msinsi acknowledges the need for a Board Charter as recommended in King III Report on Corporate
Governance in South Africa. The purpose of this Charter is to set out the Board’s role and responsibilities as well as
requirements for its composition and meeting procedures.
In discharging its responsibilities, the Board adheres to the following principles:

20

•

Accountability;

•

Transparency;

•

Responsibility;

•

Disclosure; and

•

To the extent required, the Board further adheres to the guidelines, policies or directives set by
the Department of Water and Sanitation for entities that fall within the Minister of Water and
Sanitation’s authority.
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3.2 FUNCTIONING OF THE BOARD
Msinsi Holdings SOC Ltd is a juristic company governed by the Companies Act. It was established in 1992 and is a
wholly owned subsidiary of Umgeni Water.
Msinsi Board is comprised of seven members, six non-executive directors and one executive director, the Managing
Director. The duties of the Board are outlined in the Board Charter and are underpinned by the principles of good
corporate governance. Msinsi Board is also committed to ethical behaviour and is guided by the King III report of
good corporate governance in South Africa.
The following is a summary of activities during the year under review, in relation to King III reporting standards:

Risk Management
Msinsi follows an integrated approach towards risk management. During the planning process, strategic and
operational risks are identified. Risks are continuously monitored to determine, amongst other things, the emerging
risks for the organisation. Quarterly risk reviews were held during the year under review.

Minimising Conflict of Interest
Conflict of interests’ disclosure takes place on various occasions. As part of Human Resource Management practice
during the recruitment and selection process, members of the selection panel are also required to declare their
relationship or any potential conflict of interest which may arise from knowing, or previous association with,
candidates being assessed. The Board and Executive Committee members are also required to disclose any
interests prior to the commencement of the meeting proceedings.

Health, Safety and Environmental Issues
The organisation is in compliance with the Occupational Health and Safety Act, 1993 (Act 85 of 1993), as all
requirements of the Act to ensure a safe and conducive working environment, were adhered to in respect of training
and meetings. No major incidents or injuries were reported during the period under review.
The organisational Occupational Health and Safety policy and procedure will be reviewed as part of the systems and
processes to be developed in the upcoming year.

3.3 EXECUTIVE AUTHORITY
The organisation is monitored by Umgeni Water and ultimately by the Minister of Water and Sanitation as the
Executive Authority responsible for Umgeni Water. Msinsi is operating under the three strategic objectives derived
from the National Water Act (36 of 1998). The National Water Act outlines the responsibility of the land owner or
management agency of a water resource in terms of environmental management.
The Act states that the person who owns, controls, occupies, or uses a water resource, is responsible for
the following:
•

To protect the aquatic and associated ecosystems and their biological diversity;

•

To reduce and prevent pollution and degradation of the water resources, and

•

To allow and control access to the dams for recreational purposes, and make reasonable charges for
the use of, and entry onto, the water surface. (The National Water Act No. 36 of 1998)

Furthermore, there are additional legislations which play a crucial role in the management and mandate
of Msinsi.
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3.4 COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD AND MEMBERS’ PROFILES
3.4.1 Composition of the Board
Msinsi’s Board of Directors is comprised of six non-executive Board members and one executive Board member, the Managing
Director. The Memorandum of Incorporation (MOI) outlines the roles of the Board members and the Managing Director. Amongst
other things, the MOI prescribes that the Chief Executive of Umgeni Water, or his nominee shall be the Chairperson of the Msinsi
Board, and the terms of chairmanship will be determined by the term in office as the Chief Executive. Accordingly, Mr C. Gamede,
Umgeni Water Chief Executive, was the Chairman of Msinsi Board for the period ending 30 June 2017.
The involvement of Umgeni Water executives in the board of Msinsi does not negate the Board Member’s fiduciary responsibility to
Msinsi. To further emphasise the Board’s willingness to provide effective oversight and ensure collective independence, the SubCommittees of the Board going forward will be chaired by Independent Non-Executive Directors. A detailed report on this will appear
in next year year’s annual report.
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3.4.2 Board Members’ Profiles
Board members were appointed to bring a balance of skills and expertise in providing leadership and control to the organisation and
advising top management.

Mr Cyril Gamede

Mr Steven Gillham

Non-Executive Director: Chairman
(Until 30 June 2017)

Non-Executive Director

BSc (Eng) Mechanical; MSc (Eng) Industrial; MBA;
Advanced Diploma in Labour Law; Certificate in
Corporate Governance.
•

Registered Professional Engineer (ECSA)

•

Director of Operations, Umgeni Water from
1996 to 2002

•

Director AEL Mining Services from 2002 to 2010

•

Managing Director of K2S Consulting from 2010
to 2012

•

Appointed as Chief Executive Umgeni Water in
August 2012

•

President of ECSA since 2012

•

Chairperson of Council for the University of Zululand
since 2012

•

Mr Gamede was appointed as a Director from
16 April 2014 to 30 June 2017
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Registered Professional Engineer (ECSA);
BSc Engineering (Civil), B Com
•

Planning Services Manager, Umgeni Water from
1999 to 2012

•

General Manager Engineering and Scientific
Services, Umgeni Water from 2012

•

Mr Gillham was appointed as a Director from 2012

•

Director of Msinsi Holdings (Pty) Ltd from 2012
to 2014

•

Director of Msinsi Holdings SOC Limited from 2014
to date
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Mr Thami Hlongwa

Dr Bandile Mkhize

Mr Siboniso Shabalala

Non-Executive Director

Non-Executive Director

Non-Executive Director

Chartered Accountant (SA); B Com
Honours

PhD Philosophy; Masters in Arts, BA
Honours, Bachelor of Arts

Chartered Accountant (SA), B Com
Honours

•

Dr Mkhize is the former Chief
Executive Officer of Ezemvelo
KZN Wildlife from 2008 to 2015

•

Mr Shabalala was appointed as a
Director from 22 September 2015

•

Mr Shabalala is currently the
Chairperson of the Ethics Committee
of Umgeni Water and is a seasoned
chartered accountant

•

He will bring the vastly needed
audit and accounting experience to
the Board. He is an objective
professional and, having been
exposed to the holding company’s
operations, has a good
understanding of the Msinsi culture

•

Mr Shabalala is a qualified Chartered
Accountant and has extensive
public and private sector experience
in Financial Management and
Corporate Governance matters.

•

He is currently the Managing Director
of Ukukhanya Advisory Services, an
Accounting and Auditing company
based in Durban

•

Served in sub-committees of SAICA
and ABASA

•

Completed articles with Deloitte from
2002 to 2004

•

•

Audit Senior in Deloitte New York
Office from 2004 to 2005

He is currently the Chairperson of
Harry Gwala Development Agency

•

•

Senior Manager at Siyaya
Management Services from 2005
to 2007

He also serves on the Board of
Trustees of the University of
Zululand Foundation

•

Among other boards, he has
served on the Boards of the
Wildlands Conservation Trust,
Johannesburg Tourism, Federated
Hospitality Association of Southern
Africa (East Coast Region)

•

Chief Financial Officer KZN CoGTA
from March 2007 to June 2013

•

Appointed as General Manager:
Finance of Umgeni Water in
July 2013

•

Mr Hlongwa was appointed as a
Director from 16 April 2014

•

He has travelled extensively abroad

•

Dr Mkhize was appointed as a
Director from 16 April 2014
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Ms Mbali TB Ndlovu

Mr Mboniseni Dlamini

Mr Sbusiso Madonsela

Non-Executive Director

Executive Director

Company Secretary

LLB (UKZN), Admitted Attorney of the
High Court of South Africa

Master of Science in Microbiology, Master
of Business Administration (MBA),
Diploma in Company Direction, Strategic
Turnaround Management Certificate

Admitted Attorney of the High Court of
South Africa.

•

She has a wealth of experience in
Local Government having been
Deputy Municipal Manager for
uMhlathuze Municipality between
2009 and 2014

•

Ms Ndlovu was appointed as a
Director from 22 September 2015.

•

She is currently the Managing
Director MBASA Corporate Advisory
Services Consultancy

•

She is an avid legal and governance
specialist and brings the required
balance to the Audit Committee in
terms of a broad understanding of
the members’ fiduciary
responsibilities.
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•

He is the member of the Institute of
Directors of Southern Africa and
Water Institute of Southern Africa.

•

He is the former CEO of Magalies
Water for 5 years prior to
joining Msinsi.

•

•

LLB (UZ); Postgraduate Diploma in
Compliance (UJ); holds qualifications in
Construction Contracts and Construction
Adjudication from the University of
Pretoria.

•

Mr Dlamini was appointed as a
Managing Director from
01 May 2017.

Upon leaving Private Legal Practice
in 2007, he joined the Competition
Commission and occupied various
portfolios, the most recent being
the Commission’s Legal Counsel.

•

He also served as General Manager
of Operations at Umgeni Water
during the period 2008 to 2010.

In 2011 he joined Umgeni Water as
Legal Services Manager, a position he
held until December 2013.

•

Mr Madonsela was appointed as a
Company Secretary from
01 January 2014.

•

He has also served as a Trustee of
the Umgeni Water Provident Fund
and is now the current Fund
Principal Officer.
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3.4.3 Board Members’ demographics

Figure 3.1: Board Members’ Age Profile

14%

14%

86%

Figure 3.2: Board Members Race Profile
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86%

Figure 3.3: Board Members Gender Profile
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3.5 BOARD COMMITTEES
The Board established three committees as support structures for discharging its responsibilities, namely:

•

Finance, Human Resources and Remuneration Committee

•

CAPEX and Operations Committee

•

Audit Committee

The functions of each committee are outlined in the Board Charter.

3.5.1 Finance, HR and Remuneration Committee
The Committee is chaired by Mr T. Hlongwa and it consists of two (2) additional non-executive Board members Mr S. Gillham and Dr
B. Mkhize, and one (1) executive Board member Mr M. Dlamini.
The Committee reviews and recommends to the Board all matters relating to:
•

Human Resources policies, organisational structure, and compliance with the Employment Equity Act, (Act 55 of 1998) and
other labour legislation;

•

Conditions of employment of executive management;

•

Appointment of the Managing Director and members of executive management;

•

Remuneration packages for the Managing Director, members of executive management and staff;

•

Succession planning for executive management;

•

Policies and practices for Performance Management;

•

Strategic Human Resource related matters, and

•

Special rewards recommended by the Managing Director;

•

Budget and all other finance-related information.

Joint
Meetings

03-Nov-16

16-Feb-17

M

ü

ü

ü

ü

ü

2. Dr IB Mkhize

M

ü

ü

ü

ü

ü

3. Mr SW Gillham

M

ü

ü

ü

ü

ü

4. Ms M Ndlovu

F

n/a

n/a

n/a

n/a

ü

5. Mr S Shabalala

M

n/a

n/a

n/a

n/a

ü

06- Apr-17

01-Sept -16

1. Mr TB Hlongwa

01-Jun-17

Board Member

Gender

Normal Meetings

6. Mr R Naguran
M
ü
ü
ü
n/a
#						

n/a

7. Mr M Dlamini

ü

M

n/a

n/a

n/a

ü

Figure 3.5.1 Finance, HR and Remuneration Committee Meetings Attendance in 2016/2017
ü- Attendance
# Terminated 30 May 2017
n/a – Not a Member
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3.5.2 CAPEX and Operations Committee
This Committee is chaired by Mr. S. Gillham and comprises two (2) additional non-executive Board members Mr T.
Hlongwa and Dr B. Mkhize, and one (1) executive Board member Mr M. Dlamini
The Committee reviews and recommends to the Board all matters relating to:
•

Capital expenditure programmes

•

Procurement policies

•

Capital expenditure budget

•

Infrastructure asset maintenance programmes and performance.

•

Operational plans

Joint
Meetings

03-Nov-16

16-Feb-17

M

ü

ü

ü

ü

ü

2. Dr IB Mkhize

M

ü

ü

ü

ü

ü

3. Mr TB Hlongwa

M

ü

ü

ü

ü

ü

4. Ms M Ndlovu

F

n/a

n/a

n/a

n/a

ü

5. Mr S Shabalala

M

n/a

n/a

n/a

n/a

ü

06- Apr-17

01-Sept -16

1. Mr SW Gillham

01-Jun-17

Board Member

Gender

Normal Meetings

6. Mr R Naguran
M
ü
ü
ü
n/a
#						

n/a

7. Mr M Dlamini

ü

M

n/a

n/a

n/a

ü

Figure 3.5.2 CAPEX and Operations Committee Meetings Attendance in 2016/2017

ü - Attendance
# - Terminated 30 May 2017
n/a - Not a member
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3.5.3 Audit Committee
The Audit committee is the statutory committee of the Board, established in terms of the PFMA. The Committee
consists of three (3) non-executive Board members Mr S. Shabalala, Ms M. Ndlovu and the Chairman, Dr Bandile
Mkhize.
The Committee provides assurance on matters relating to:
•

The effectiveness of internal control systems and risk management processes;

•

The effectiveness of internal audit;

•

Integrated reporting;

•

A combined assurance model is applied to provide a coordinated approach to all assurance activities;

•

The expertise, resources and experience of the entity’s finance function;

•

The adequacy, reliability and accuracy of financial information provided to management and other users
of such information;

•

Any accounting and auditing concerns identified as a result of internal and external audits;

•

Compliance with legal and regulatory provisions;

•

The activities of the internal audit function, including its annual work programme, co-ordination with the
external auditors, the reports of significant investigations, and the responses of management to
specific recommendations;

•

Recommends appointment of external auditors, oversees the external audit process and advises the board
on matters connected to the maintenance of the independence and objectivity of the external auditors;

•

Organisation’s financial statements;

•

Reporting to the Board and shareholders on how it has discharged its duties.

Board Member

01-Sept -16

03-Nov-16

16-Feb-17

01-Jun-17

06- Apr-17

Joint
Meetings

Gender

Normal Meetings

1. Dr IB Mkhize

M

ü

ü

ü

ü

ü

2. Mr S Shabalala

M

ü

ü

ü

ü

ü

3. Ms M Ndlovu

M

ü

ü

ü

ü

ü

Figure 5.3.5 Audit Committee Meetings Attendance 2016/2017
ü Attendance
n/a - Not a member
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3.6 Summary of Board Membership and Meeting Attendance in 2016/2017
3.6.1 Board of Directors
As mentioned above, there are seven Board members assigned to three committees as depicted in table below:

No.
Board Member
Gender
Board
Finance
				
HR &
				 REMCO

CAPEX &
Operations

Audit

1

Mr Cyril Gamede 1

M

w

2

Mr Steven Gillham *

M

w

w

w

3

Mr Thami Hlongwa**

M

w

w

w

4

Dr Bandile Mkhize ***

M

w

w

w

5

Mr Siboniso Shabalala

M

w

w

6

Ms Mbali Ndlovu

F

w

w

7

Mr Ray Naguran #

M

w

w

w

w

8.

Mr Mboniseni Dlamini ****

M

w

w

w

w

w

Figure 3.6.1 Board of Directors

w Denotes Board / Committee Member
1 Chairman
*CAPEX and Ops Chairperson
**Finance, HR & REMCO Chairperson
***Audit Chairperson
****Joined 01 May 2017
#Terminated 30 May 2017

30-Sept -16

29-Nov-16

17-Mar-17

30-Jun-17

21- Apr-17

Joint
Meetings

Gender

Normal Meetings

1. Mr CV Gamede1

M

ü

ü

ü

#

#

2. Mr SW Gillham3

M

ü

ü

ü

ü

ü

3. Dr IB Mkhize2

M

ü

ü

ü

ü

ü

4. Mr TB Hlongwa4

M

ü

ü

ü

ü

ü

5. Ms M Ndlovu

F

ü

ü

ü

ü

ü

6. Mr S Shabalala

M

ü

ü

ü

ü

ü

7. Mr R Naguran#

M

ü

ü

ü

8. Mr M Dlamini5

M

n/a

n/a

n/a

Board Member

ü
ü

n/a

Figure 3.6.2 Board Meetings Attendance

ü Denotes Board Member
1 Board Chairman
2 Audit Committee chairman
3 CAPEX Committee Chairman
4 Human Resources and Remuneration Committee Chairman
5 Managing Director
n/a- Appointed 01 May 2017
# -Terminated 30 May 2017
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3.7 DELEGATION OF AUTHORITY
The existing comprehensive Delegation of Authority framework governs the authority levels for the Board and management. The
Board reviews the framework every four years.

3.8 COMPANY SECRETARIAT
The Company Secretary from the parent company (Umgeni Water Board) also serves the Msinsi Board. The Company
Secretary is not a Director of the Company or its parent company, and accordingly maintains an independent and arm’s length
relationship with the Board and the Executives.

3.9 EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE
The Executive Committee consists of the Managing Director and two (2) executives. The Executive Committee executes the
strategy of the organization as delegated by the Board.

3.10 EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE PROFILES
MR MBONISENI DLAMINI
MANAGING DIRECTOR
Master of Science in Microbiology, Master of Business Administration (MBA), Diploma
in Company Direction, Strategic Turnaround Management Certificate
•

He is the former CEO of Magalies Water for 5 years prior to joining Msinsi

•

He also served as General Manager of Operations at Umgeni Water during the
period 2008 to 2010

•

He is the member of the Institute of Directors of Southern Africa and Water
Institute of Southern Africa

•

Mr Dlamini was appointed as a Managing Director from 01 May 2017

MS MBALI NGUBANE
DIVISIONAL HEAD: CORPORATE SERVICES
Chartered Accountant (SA); B Com Honours Accounting; Advanced Certificate
(Auditing). Ms Ngubane was appointed as the Divisional Head: Corporate
Services effective on 01 February 2017.
•

She was a Senior Lecturer at the University of Zululand

•

She has also held a position as a Tax Consultant in the Business Tax
Advisory division of Ernst & Young where she also completed her articles

•

Prior to joining Msinsi, she was an Audit Manager at the Auditor General
of South Africa.

DIVISIONAL HEAD: OPERATIONS
•

Mduduzi Ngubane was the Divisional Head: Operations from the 15th September 2015 to 30th April 2017

•

Following Mr Ngubane’s resignation, the recruitment of the Divisional Head: Operations was concluded after the
end of the reporting financial year and the incumbent is expected to commence duties in the first quarter of
2017/18 financial year
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4

OPERATIONS REVIEW

4.1 Strategic Objective 1: Increase services and customers
Project EDEN was conceived as a response, or effort, to increase revenue earned through ecotourism
products. The initiative was prompted largely by the decline in the economy and consequent decrease
in visitor numbers, attributed to unfavourable economic conditions. The objectives of the project were
to increase visitor numbers and product offerings in order to attract guests visiting Msinsi’s facilities for
recreational purposes.
Furthermore, an internal team was formed to develop a comprehensive list of possible product offerings, from
which, a few products were identified and rated for implementation during the year under review. The top 10
product offerings in order of revenue generation during the year under review are presented in the
graph below.

Figure 4.1: Top 10 products and services in descending order of revenue generated
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The Wild Card product remains the highest generator of revenue, followed by accommodation and gate takings. The Wild
Card product is the access and loyalty programme which entitles Wild Card members access to participating Protected Areas.
This product is being administered by SANParks. Msinsi and other partners to the programme earn a percentage of the gross
proceeds of the programme. Total net earnings of R3 203 080 were achieved from this programme during the year under review.
Wild Card product earnings are expected to increase as the EDEN project initiatives continue to grow in the future.

4.2 Wild Card, Accommodation, Camping and Visitor Statistics
Figures 4.2 and 4.3 illustrate consolidated visitor statistics based on the Wild Card product, accommodation and camping; and
adult, child and pensioner, respectively.

Figure 4.2: Consolidated wild card, Accommodation and Camping (activities) over a period of 4 years

Figure 4.3: Consolidated visitor statistics (demographics) over a period of 4 years
Figure 4.2 indicates a decline in visitor numbers for the accommodation, Wild Card product, and camping products over the
past 4 years. Visitor numbers for the period under review are significantly below the average of the past 4 years. The Wild Card
product remains the highest visitor attraction followed by camping and, lastly, accommodation.
The visitor numbers’ decline is being addressed through the various initiatives being undertaken by Msinsi. These undertakings
include interalia the EDEN products, infrastructure, facilities and service quality improvements.
Figure 4.3 indicates that adults remained the highest number of visitors to Msinsi reserves, followed by children and, lastly,
pensioners. Year-on-year comparison shows an increase in all 3 visitor categories in 2016/17 when compared to 2015/16.
Although the visitor numbers have increased compared to the previous period, the increase was inadequate to generate revenues
budgeted for the period under review.
The individual reserves monitor visitor numbers and activities sold to the visitors. A total of 111 189 guests were recorded to
have accessed Msinsi’s facilities during the 2016/17 financial year. The graphs present year on year visitor numbers over the
period of 4 years including the year under review.
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Albert Falls Dam & Game Reserve
Albert Falls Dam & Game Reserve is situated at one of the
largest dams in KZN, only 30 minutes from Pietermaritzburg.
This reserve offers water skiing, sailing, canoeing, nature
trails, fishing, bird watching and game viewing. Take a break
in fully equipped, three-star graded self-catering rondavels
and chalets set in the Notuli Game Park. The exclusive six bed
Notuli Cottage is the perfect getaway for families, and offers
spectacular views of the dam and Karkloof Mountains in the
background. Game drives will reveal rhino, buffalo, eland,
blesbok, giraffe, warthog, zebra and a wide variety of
birdlife. Albert Falls Dam has the most diverse wildlife species,
which includes 2 of the Big 5 animals, namely rhinoceros
and buffalo.

Conference facilities are available in formal or casual settings
and are attended to by our professional staff. The upmarket
hall at Albert Falls Dam can be used for wedding receptions,
parties, conferences etc., and outdoor lovers can hold small
conferences on the thatched gazebo situated at Notuli
site. There are waterfront campsites with well- maintained
ablutions that are serviced daily. Wildlife in the reserve includes
zebra, several antelope species, such as the springbok,
red hartebeest, oribi, rhino and giraffe. The whole area has
abundant birdlife, and visitors can enjoy game drives. The main
gate opens at 5:30am. Visitors pay an entrance fee for whatever
facility they intend to use when entering the Reserve. All day
visitors are expected to leave the Reserve by 18h00.

GPS Coordinates
29.4500° S,
30.4000° E

Figure 4.4: Albert Falls Dam & Game Reserve Map

Figure 4.5: Albert Falls Dam & Game Reserve Visitor
Statistics
Visitor numbers in Albert Falls Dam have been declining over
the past 4 years, including numbers for the period under
review. Although the adult day visitors are consistently
higher than children and pensioners, visitors for the period
under review are below the 4 year average and also below the
2015/16 financial year numbers.
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Figure 4.6: Albert Falls Dam & Game Reserve Wild Card product,
Accommodation and Camping
A similar declining trend is also observed with visitors for Wild
Card, accommodation and camping. Camping activity appears
to be the most popular activity at Albert Falls Dam when
compared to Wild Card and accommodation.
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Bon Accorde Resort
Bon Accorde Resort is amongst our establishments which
received a three-star grading affirmation from the Tourism
Grading Council of South Africa in April 2015. Msinsi has
maintained the facility’s three-star grading for the past two
years. Bon Accorde Resort is located on the Eastern shores
of Albert Falls Dam & Game Reserve. Set in cool tranquility
overlooking the Karkloof Valley, Bon Accorde Resort exudes
serenity.
It boasts ten fully equipped three-star graded four sleeper
self-catering chalets situated along the water’s edge, affording
commanding views of the dam and the distant Karkloof Hills.
For those who prefer a more rustic experience, Bon Accorde
offers electrical and non-electrical campsites designed to
ensure outdoor lovers enjoy a peaceful night along
the shoreline.

The gazebo which is situated a few metres away from the
dam, can be used for open-air conferences, weddings and
parties. Guests and day-visitors can invite family and friends to
their own Putt-Putt challenge on our course, which has been
specially designed for everyone from novices to experienced
golfers. Bon Accorde Resort is the perfect place to relax body,
mind and soul. Furthermore, Bon Accorde Resort has an open,
level area convenient for outdoor events such as jazz festivals,
picnics and other functions. This area has a carrying capacity
of up to 3000 people, and a marquee can be safely erected
here. The newly built conference centre, combined with on-site
accommodation, is an excellent venue for hosting small or large
conferences, weddings, year-end events, meetings, training
sessions, high teas, baby showers etc.

Figure 4.8: Bon Accorde Wild Card product, Accommodation and Camping

Figure 4.7: Bon Accorde Visitor Statistics
Bon Accorde also experienced decreased visitor numbers over
the last financial year. This is in line with the trend experienced
over the last 3 or 4 years, where visitor numbers have dropped
from just below 15 000 to just above five thousand. Visitor
numbers in Bon Accorde have also been on a decline for the
past 4 years, including the period under review. Contrary to
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Albert Falls, accommodation visitors are consistently higher
than camping visitors. Visitor numbers are also below the
average for the past 4 years.
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Nagle Dam & Game Reserve
Deep in the heart of the Valley of a Thousand Hills,
less than an hour’s drive from both Pietermaritzburg
and Durban, lies an African jewel. Nagle Dam & Game
Reserve can be found nestling in the foothills of KZN’s
very own ‘Table Mountain’. The dam is famous for tranquil
picnic spots, excellent fishing, canoeing, nature trails and
a game viewing experience. Accommodation is available at
the stately twelve sleeper Nagle Lodge, the exclusive six
sleeper Msinsi Lodge, six three-star graded two sleeper
modern safari style tented accommodation, and a six sleeper
Hatchery Lodge. Msinsi has maintained the facility’s threestar grading for the past two years. The conference centre
situated on the island of Nagle Dam & Game Reserve, offers
a unique natural location for conferences and corporate
workshops.

GPS Coordinates
29.5836° S,
30.6169° E

Figure 4.9: Nagle Dam & Game Reserve Map

Figure 4.10: Nagle Dam & Game Reserve Visitor Statistics

Figure 4.11: Nagle Dam Wild Card product, Accommodation and Camping
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Day visitors appear to be on a recovery trend at
Nagle Dam & Game Reserve when compared to
day visitor numbers for 2013/14 and 2015/16.
This upward trend is expected to continue in
2017/18 due to improved access control for
day visitors. Access control improvements were
implemented in the 4th quarter of 2016/17. The
accommodation visitor numbers are consistently
higher than the camping and Wild Card
numbers. This is consistent with the quality of
accommodation offered by Nagle Dam & Game
Reserve. The numbers for Wild Card users are
also expected to rise in 2017/18 when access
control would have been improved.
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Inanda cruise boat

Inanda Dam & Resort
Situated on the southern bank of Inanda Dam in the Valley of
a Thousand Hills below Hillcrest, this resort offers all forms
of recreational boating and is famous for bass fishing.

GPS Coordinates
29.7003° S, 30.8669° E

The Inanda Bass Classic fishing tournament held at this
resort attracts hundreds of anglers each year. Inanda
is the perfect venue for canoeing, and is a compulsory
overnight stop for the famous Duzi Canoe Marathon.
Camping and picnic sites as well as four self-catering
tented accommodation units set on the water’s edge, afford
magnificent views of the surrounding hills and make this an
ideal venue for water sport enthusiasts and nature lovers.

Figure 4.12: Inanda Dam & Resort Map

Figure 4.13: Inanda Dam & Resort Visitor Statistics

Day visitor numbers at Inanda Dam &
Resort are above the 4 year average,
including the 2016/17 period. However,
there is decline in Wild Card users and
accommodation visitors, albeit insignificant
numbers during the period under review.
Wild Card product and Camping visitors
are most popular when compared to
accommodation visitors. This is consistent
with the fact that Inanda Dam has few
accommodation facilities and vast land for
camping activities.
A cruise boat was acquired for Inanda
Dam in the 2016/17 financial year. It is
anticipated that this asset will be a source
of revenue generation for Inanda Dam. It
will be launched in Q1 of 2017/18, and
it is targeting the special events market.
Upgrades of facilities were undertaken in
2016/17 with the purpose of improving
visitor traffic to Inanda Dam.
The upgrades undertaken include:

Figure 4.14: Inanda Dam & Resort Wild Card product, Accommodation and Camping
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•

Campsite ablution facilities

•

Electrical system

•

Internal roads
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Edamini Lifestyle Lounge

Hazelmere Dam & Resort
Hazelmere Dam & Resort experienced a drought during the year
under review. Even so, a day’s outing at shady picnic spots will
reward every nature lover with a breath of fresh air, and many
birds and butterflies. With shady campsites, some of which have
power points, guests can gather around the thatched lapa while
cooking a meal in the communal kitchen. Hazelmere is popular for
hosting major events, namely the Jazz Festival, Bikers’ Rally, and
Fun in the Sun to mention a few.

GPS Coordinates
29.6003° S, 31.0417° E

Figure 4.15: Hazelmere Dam & Resort Map

Figure 4.16: Hazelmere Dam & Resort Visitor Statistics

Day visitors to Hazelmere Dam increased in
2016/17; the numbers peaked in 2016/17
when compared to the past 3 years. Day visitor
numbers are above the 4 year average including
2016/17.
Camping activity also appears to be popular,
followed by Wild Card users. Wild Card user
numbers are comparable to the 4 year average,
whilst camping activity is significantly above the 4
year average. It should be noted that the current
project to raise the dam wall of Hazelmere Dam
may have an adverse impact on special events
and camping activities. A significant portion
of the land will be submerged once the project
is completed, thus reducing land available for
camping and special events.

Figure 4.17: Hazelmere Dam & Resort Wild Card product,
Accommodation and Camping
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Hazelmere has subsequently undertaken projects
to supplement revenues. The main project is the
conversion of an existing house into a lifestyle
lounge. This facility provides a lounge-style
relaxation environment and can cater for special
events. The lounge has an impressive catering
facility to satisfy the needs of visitors. The project
will be launched in Q1 of 2017/18.
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Shongweni Dam & Game Reserve
Shongweni Dam & Game Reserve is a piece
of true Africa, a mere 30 minutes drive from
Durban. From inspiring cliffs and waterfalls, to
lush forests and open thorn trees, this game
reserve is home to buffalo, giraffe, waterbuck,
wildebeest, warthog, a variety of birds and
a host of nocturnal animals. The dam is an
excellent venue for overnight camping, game
drives, fishing, picnics, nature trails and a variety
of non-motorised water sports.

GPS Coordinates
29.8567° S, 30.7213° E

Figure 4.18: Shongweni Dam & Nature Reserve Map

Figure 4.19: Shongweni Dam & Nature Reserve Visitor Statistics

Figure 4.20: Shongweni Dam & Nature Reserve Wild card product,
Accommodation and Camping
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Day visitor numbers for Shongweni have
shown a decline over the past 4 years, and
are also below the 4 year average. Similarly
the Wild Card users and accommodation
visitors are on a decline, whilst camping
visitors increased when compared to
2015/16. Wild Card numbers were the
highest, followed by camping in 2016/17.
It should be noted that the community of
Shongweni was successful in claiming the
Shongweni Dam & Game Reserve in 2012/13,
which saw ownership of Shongweni Dam
& Game Reserve being transferred to the
Zwelibomvu Community Trust. To date
Msinsi, Zwelibomvu Community Trust and
the Department of Land Affairs are working
on a handover plan that will formally transfer
the operation of the Shongweni Dam & Game
Reserve to the Zwelibomvu Community Trust.
It is expected that the handover plan will be
completed in Q1 of 2017/18.
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Overall, Msinsi has implemented a number of projects aimed at increasing guest numbers and consequently increasing
revenue. These projects were funded from Umgeni Water’s capital injection to Msinsi.
PROJECT
SITE

INFRASTRUCTURE
UPGRADE

REVENUE
ENHANCEMENT

MOVABLE ASSET

Albert Falls
Fence
		

Bon Accorde
Conference Centre

Diesel Power Generators

		
		

Putt-Putt Golf Course
at Bon Accorde

		

Game Drive vehicle

Hazelmere

Fence

Lifestyle Lounge

Tractor

Nagle

Upgrade of Access Roads

Game Drive vehicle

Tractor

Fence
Inanda

Electrical Upgrade

Cruise Boat

Ablutions

Table 4.21: Projects funded from Umgeni Water’s capital injection to Msinsi

It is expected that these projects will enhance Msinsi’s revenues for the 2017/18 financial year.
Strategic Objective 2: Increase Customer and Stakeholder Value
Msinsi interacts with a number of stakeholders in execution of its mandate. The value proposition and the key stakeholders
that Msinsi interacted with during the year under review are listed in Figure 4.22

Msinsi Employees

Trade Union

Media

Suppliers

Customers

Recruit and
retain the
correct number
of personnel
with the right
competencies at
the right time, and
aligned to achieve
the vision of the
organisation

Collaboration to
achieve healthy
employee
relations in the
organisation

Communication
platforms to
enhance Msinsi’s
brand

To acquire goods
and services at
the right quantity,
quality, cost and
at the right time

To provide
product quality
that meets
customer
expectations

Umgeni Water

Msinsi Board of
Directors

Amakhosi,
Councillors,
Municipalities,
Government
Departments and
Communities

Tourism and
Environmental
Bodies

Shareholder &
Co-management
of Water
Resources

Ensure Good
Corporate
Governance

Collaboration
to achieve
community
stability and
sustainability

Collaboration
for funding
mobilisation
& Operational
Optimisation

Figure 4.22: Msinsi Key Stakeholders
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All targets for stakeholder engagement were met to achieve the outcome of stakeholder understanding and support. The following
discussion presents key engagements in this regard:
Amakhosi

MSINSI RESERVE/ RESORT

INKOSI

Inanda

Bhengu

		

Gwala

		

Ngcobo

Shongweni

Mkhize

		

Shozi

Nagle

Mdluli

		

Gcumisa

		

Maphumulo

Table 4.23: Msinsi Facilities within the Areas of Amakhosi
Stakeholder engagement continuously and successfully
created value for Msinsi’s operations and the communities at
large,
such as:
•

There was no interruption of Msinsi’s operations as a
result of community instability in the neighbouring areas.

•

Sourcing labour within the communities around Msinsi
operations created job opportunities for the communities.
A total of 436 temporary jobs were created with labour
being sourced within communities neighbouring
Msinsi’s operations. A total of 31 learners recruited from
the communities were enrolled in the Learnership
Programme of Accommodation Services,
NQF Level 2.

Continuous engagement with the Amakhosi in the area of
Shongweni has been crucial towards achieving the successful
handover of Shongweni Dam & Game Reserve to the
community following the transfer of that land from Umgeni
Water to Zwelibomvu Community Trust. Msinsi will continue to
implement programmes that benefit communities.

Tourism Bodies
Msinsi participated as an exhibitor at the KZN Tourism Indaba
held at the Durban International Convention Centre (ICC)
on 15 to 19 May 2017. Valuable lessons were learnt in this
process, and these lessons will continue to enrich Msinsi’s
approach to growing its ecotourism business. Furthermore,
Msinsi is in the process of concluding agreements with three
tourism entities in KZN for purposes of collaboration in
areas of mutual interest. These collaboration initiatives are
expected to be concluded in the
upcoming year.

Umgeni Water

and actual operations of the dams are undertaken by the
Dam Superintendents. The collaboration has been effective in
managing the water resources in Msinsi’s area of operation.
Engagement with Umgeni Water at shareholder level has
been undertaken with the Umgeni Water Executive Committee
for the purpose of continuous review of the service level
agreement. Msinsi’s service obligations were achieved
during the year under review. Statutory submissions to a
shareholder were all achieved during the year under review.

Municipalities
Municipalities are an important stakeholder since all Msinsi’s
operations are within the jurisdiction of municipalities.
Municipalities also present an opportunity for collaboration in
order to achieve community stability; they are also potential
customers for Msinsi’s ecotourism product offerings.  
The Albert Falls Dam & Game Reserve and Bon Accorde Resort
are located within the jurisdiction of Umgungundlovu District
Municipality and uMshwathi Local Municipality, whilst Nagle
Dam is situated within the jurisdiction of the uMgungundlovu
District Municipality (DM) and the Mkhambathini Local
Municipality (LM). Inanda, Shongweni and Hazelmere
Resorts are within the jurisdiction of eThekwini Metropolitan
Municipality.
The uMshwathi Local Municipality has utilised Msinsi’s
services during the year under review, and Msinsi is planning
to attract more municipalities to utilise its facilities in the
forthcoming financial year.   
Furthermore, a number of promotional activities have been
undertaken with the Mfolozi Local Municipality. The objective
of these was to expand Msinsi’s clientele database for the
EDEN loyalty product.

Co-management of the water resources takes place at the
operational level between the Msinsi Reserve Managers,
Umgeni Water Dam Superintendents and Scientific Services.  
Msinsi is responsible for managing the water resources
within the purchase line; water testing and scientific advice
is being conducted by Umgeni Water’s Scientific Services;
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Trade Union and Employees

Strategic Objective 4: Improve All Key Systems

The recognised worker’s union of Msinsi is NEHAWU.
Engagement with the workers union is a structured
communication, with feedback regarding the plans and
performance of the organisation. Co-operation by the
union has contributed significantly towards labour stability
during 2016/17. This co-operation is expected to continue
maturing in the years to come. Engagement with employees
was also held for the same purpose of providing a platform
for structured communication and feedback regarding the
plans and performance of the organisation.

The results indicators of SO4 are the number of hectares
cleared of terrestrial alien plants, and development and
implementation of fire management plans for each reserve.

Environmental education
The primary objective of environmental education is to
create awareness of environmental matters, using the
schools as a platform for achieving this. The themes for
the campaigns are aligned with the national calendar of
environmental events or themes. Up to 2 765 learners and/
or people from 46 schools and/or institutions - plus 2 youth
organisations were reached through this programme during
the year under review. Details of activities performed are
discussed in Chapter 8 of this report.

Alien plant eradication for aquatic and terrestrial systems:
Msinsi monitors updates of the alien plants listing compiled
by SANBI.  No new or emerging alien plants were identified
in the operational area of Msinsi during the period under
review.
An alien plant eradication programme was implemented over
a total area coverage of 2 546 hectares, thus achieving the
planned target for the period under review.
This programme is implemented using casual labour sourced
from the neighbouring communities. Up to 192 people were
employed for this activity, and the demographics of the
employees is indicated in the table below.

Number of Jobs Created
Reserve

Females
18 – 35

Females
36 - 64

Males
18 – 35

Males
36 - 64

Disabled

Total

Albert Falls

18

10

20

18

0

66

Hazelmere

9

0

11

20

0

40

Nagle

18

12

12

8

1

51

Inanda

5

7

7

4

0

23

Shongweni

5

0

0

7

0

12

TOTAL

55

29

50

57

1

192

Table 4.24: Jobs Created From Alien Plant Eradication Programme

The average duration of employment by each nature reserve was 22 weeks, which translates to an average of 29 568
person workdays created. Up to 55% of the employed labour is the youth, of which the split between male and female
gender is 29% and 26% respectively. The target for this activity was achieved at all sites except Shongweni where there
were delays in sourcing local labour due to disputes within the community on this matter.
Fire Management and Working for Fire Programme
The Fire Management Plan was implemented over a total area coverage of 802.5 hectares block burns, with a total of
67.8km of fire breaks, thus achieving the planned target for the period under review.  Veld burning requires careful
execution that does not degrade the grassland ecosystem. Msinsi’s fire management planning involves the following
activities:
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•

Identifying the areas to be burnt

•

Allocate resources necessary to execute the plan

•

Engaging stakeholders regarding the execution of the plan

•

Identify, prepare and implement fire break burns

•

Obtain approval from local authorities to implement the plan

•

Execute burning schedules of identified areas.
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Labour for implementing the programme was sourced from the surrounding communities.
Up to 114 people were employed for this activity, and the demographics are presented in the table below:

Reserve

Jobs
Created

Females
18 – 35

Females
36 - 64

Males
18 – 35

Males
36 - 64

Disabled

Total

Albert Falls

24

04

19

-

-

01

47

Hazelmere

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Nagle

10

-

-

8

2

-

20

Inanda

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Shongweni

23

04

-

18

-

01

46

TOTAL

57

8

19

26

02

02

114

Table 4.25: Jobs Created From Fire Management Activities
The average duration of employment by each nature
reserve was 29 weeks, which translates to an average of
23 142 person workdays created. Up to 30% of the
employed labour is the youth, of which the split between
male and female gender is 23% and 7% respectively.
Albert Falls Dam and Shongweni Dam housed fire fighters
who were recruited from the community under the Working
for Fire Programme. This created further employment
opportunities for the youth.

Pollution Control (PC)

for various uses e.g. consumption, sport, recreation and
tourism potential. Msinsi is mandated to carry out pollution
control in all the reserves that it manages.
Msinsi monitors the quality of the water resources in
collaboration with the following stakeholders:
• Umgeni Water performs water quality sampling and
laboratory testing, as well as operating the dams.
• Duzi Umngeni Conservation Trust (DUCT), together with
the Department of Environmental Affairs, assists with
aquatic weed control in areas outside Msinsi’s area of
responsibility at Inanda Dam.

Further to alien and fire management activities, pollution
control is one of the activities that Msinsi performs in
order to effect the NWRS2 objective of protecting the
water resources. Pollution poses a risk to water suitability
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The following table provides a summary of pollution incidents that were identified and addressed during the year under review:

DAM
Hazelmere

INCIDENT
Sand mining

IMPACT
-Siltation that could result in the
reduction of dam capacity and
poor water quality.

-Reporting to relevant
authorities for enforcement of
rules and regulations.

-Re-channelling the flow of water
into the dam.

-Msinsi also does license
inspections to ensure
compliance with licensing
conditions by the miners.

-Environmental degradation

Inanda

INTERVENTION

Sand dredging

Oil spillages into the water
resulting in compromised water
quality.

Msinsi continuously enforces
rules through dam patrols, to
ensure that the activities are
conducted in an environmentally
responsible manner.

Sand mining

-Siltation that could result in the
reduction of dam capacity and
poor water quality.

The site was barricaded to
prevent access by the illegal
sand miners.

-Re-channelling the flow of water
into the dam.
-Environmental degradation

Shongweni

Small scale farming

Deposit of fertilizers from the
gardens into the dam, resulting in
a nutrient effluent.

The Department of Water and
Sanitation was consulted and
farming practices of the farmers
are being monitored.

Chemical spillage

The train derailment in the
Shongweni Dam catchment
occurred during the year under
review. This resulted in chemical
(chrome) pollution of Shongweni
Dam.

The dam continues to show
signs of improvement following
rehabilitation interventions
undertaken by Umgeni Water,
Msinsi and other stakeholders.

Table 4.26: Pollution Incidents
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Dam
Inanda Dam

Quality

Comment

Main Basin: Excellent

Mid Basin: Satisfactory

Poor quality at the upper
basin is attributed to
nutrient input from the
Msunduzi catchment

Unsatisfactory

Spring Grove

Excellent

Albert Falls

Good

Hazelmere

Excellent

Nagle Dam

Excellent

Recreational water users and
surrounding communities were
warned about the unsatisfactory
water quality of the upper dam.

Msinsi and Umgeni Water continue
to monitor the quality

Upper Basin:
Unsatisfactory

Shongweni

Mitigation Measures

The dam is only used for
recreational purposes

Msinsi and Umgeni Water
continue to provide water quality
monitoring

Table 4.27: Extract from UW Water Quality & Environmental Audit Report for June 2017

Strategic Objective 2: Increase customer and stakeholder value
Wildlife Management Plans were prioritised for review during the 2016/17 financial year.  Wildlife management is
important in order to maintain the balance of the ecosystem. The following activities were thus performed by Msinsi in
regard to wildlife management:

Carrying Capacity Management: This activity is conducted in order to maintain the balance between wildlife and
its habitat. The wildlife stock should be kept at levels not exceeding the carrying capacity of the habitat. Stock counts for
the year under review revealed that some of the animals were exceeding the capacity of the habitat. The excess animals
were recommended to the Board for disposal through hunting, live sales, inter-reserve transfers or culling. The table
below is the list of wildlife that was found to be exceeding the carrying capacity of Msinsi’s game reserves.

ANIMAL SPECIES

TOTAL EXCESS QUANTITY

Blesbok

2

Blue Wildebeest

56

Giraffe

37

Grey Duiker

5

Impala

80

Kudu

10

Nyala

15

Red Hartebeest

2

Warthog

7

Zebra

34

Waterbuck

2

TOTAL STOCK COUNT

250

Table 4.28: Excess Wildlife in 2016/17

Wildlife capacity was in excess of 250 in all Msinsi’s game reserves. It is hereby also stated that Albert Falls has
the most diverse wildlife species, which includes 2 of the Big 5 animals, namely rhinoceros and buffalo.
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Game Security
Security patrols are conducted as per the patrol plan in
order to identify and mitigate security risks to the reserves.
Reserve fence lines are all in good condition. Msinsi lost 3
of its rhinoceroses through poaching during May of the year
under review. It should also be noted that poaching incidents
are not limited to Msinsi alone - rhinoceros poaching
incidents were also reported in other game reserves in KZN.
This suggests a need to review game reserves’ security
measures to mitigate game poaching. Collaboration with
other stakeholders - e.g. Rhino Security - is being undertaken
in order to strengthen security measures for the game
reserves. A comprehensive game reserve security plan will be
concluded in the 2017/18 financial year.

Rhino Dehorning Programme

poaching, the biennial dehorning frequency has since
been revised to bi-annual dehorning. Msinsi continues to
collaborate with stakeholders in order to counteract game
poaching within the game reserves.

Game Count
Game counts are conducted on a monthly basis and game
counts for year-end were also conducted in collaboration with
external auditors. The counts conducted show consistent
numbers i.e. insignificant variation from one count to the
other at all the game reserves. This activity is crucial input to
the game-carrying capacity plans and Msinsi’s statement of
financial position.
The following table indicates the number of mortalities and
births recorded during the 2016/17 financial year:

This is one of the measures to reduce or eliminate rhinoceros
poaching. Msinsi has been dehorning the rhinoceros on a
biennial basis. In view of the recent escalation in rhinoceros
MORTALITIES

BIRTHS & INTRODUCTIONS
Game Reserve

Number

Date

Natural

Date

Poaching

Albert Falls
3 x Impala
08/2016
1 x Zebra
04/2017
2 x Blue
					Wildebeest

Date
10/2016

3 x Impala

11/ 2016

1 x Blesbok

05/2017

2 x Rhinos

10/05/2017

1 x Nyala

01/ 2017

2 x Impala

05/2017

1 x Rhino

23/05/2017

16 x Impala

01/2017

1 x Zebra

06/2017

6 x Zebra

01/2017

29 x Blue
Wildebeest

01/2017

2 x Warthog

01/ 2017

3 x Giraffe

01/2017

6 x Blesbok

01/2017

3 x Red
Hartebeest

01/2017

2 x Kudu

01/ 2017

10 x Buffalo

06/ 2017

1 x Giraffe

12/2016

5 x Wildebeest

12/2016			

4 x Impala

12/2016

4 x Zebra

12/2016

Inanda

1 x Zebra

03/2015

Shongweni

9 x Impala

12/2016

1 x Buffalo

10/2016

3 x Wildebeest

12/2016

1 x Buffalo

01/2017

1 x Giraffe

12/2016

Nagle Dam

Hazelmere

08/2016
2 x Zebra

03/2017

1 x Giraffe

03/2017

No Wildlife

Table 4.29: Number of Births and Deaths Recorded During the 2016/17 Financial Year
Msinsi’s significant game loss during the year under review was poaching of 3 rhinoceroses, all of which were lost during May
2017. Law enforcement is in the process of investigating the matter.
Game mortalities are monitored in order to continuously evaluate the risk of losing wildlife, and to mitigate against such risks if
required. The mortality rate of the year under review is not indicative of any potential risk of wildlife disease breakout.
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RISK MANAGEMENT

Risk Management Process
Section 51 (a)(i) of the Public Finance Management Act (PFMA), No 1 of 1999, requires Accounting Authorities
to establish and maintain effective, efficient and transparent systems of financial, risk management and internal
controls to enable, amongst other matters, the production of annual financial statements as per Section 55 of the
PFMA.
Similar to Umgeni Water, Msinsi Holdings defines risk as any exposure to the consequence of uncertainty that
could affect the entity’s ability to meet its strategic objectives. Risk Management is guided by an Integrated Risk
Management Framework which is aligned to strategy, thereby ensuring a focused and directed process of risk
management in the organization. The risk appetite and tolerance framework for the organisation is reviewed and
approved on an annual basis.

Identity risk

Analyse risk

Mitigate risk

Estimate
risk level

Monitor/review
controls

Figure 5.1 Msinsi’s risk management process

Strategic Risk
During the year under review, Msinsi Holdings, in collaboration with Umgeni Water, revised and produced an
updated risk assessment plan. As a result, high risk areas were identified and refined.
Msinsi currently has three strategic risks as presented in the table below. These risks have been ranked by a risk
score ranging from high to low, indicating the appetite/tolerance position, and are linked to strategic perspectives
and objectives. The cause and context of the risks and how these risks have been treated is also included.
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Risk
1

Risk Name, Score
Cause, Context and Treatment
and Status		
Ecological integrity
Overall control
strength: Good 85%
Risk Owner: MD

Cause and Context:
Poaching/breakout/diseases, pollution, fire, alien
plant infestation, aquatic weed and algae
Encroachment onto the purchase line. Increased
concentration of nutrients resulting in algal blooms.
Insufficient land to keep game

Score

Treatment approach
3 - Low

Risk Appetite &
Tolerance
Within Appetite
Within Tolerance

Interventions to mitigate this risk include the
enforcement of rules and regulations, land
management erosion control, community outreach,
fencing, security, patrolling and monitoring, aquatic
and terrestrial aliens plant control, as well as a fire
management and pollution management plan.

Main Strategic Perspective
and Objectives
Customer and Stakeholder
Perspective:
SO2 Increase Customer and
Stakeholder Value

Financial Perspective:
SO3 Improve Financial
Viability

Process Perspective:
SO4 Improve All Key Systems

In terms of pollution detection, Msinsi is currently
working in conjunction with DUCT and DWS to assist
with the detection of any pollution occurring beyond
Msinsi’s area of responsibility i.e. the purchase line.
The removal of terrestrial alien plant species remains
an integral part of Msinsi’s biodiversity. There is a
planned quarterly programme to remove terrestrial
alien plants, and the target set for 2016/2017 has
been achieved for all reserves.

2

Reputation/ Image
Overall control
strength: Good 90%

Cause and Context:

Risk Owner: MD

Lack of conservation consciousness; crime/violence
in the vicinity of the reserves; possible drowning and
injuries to visitors; encroachment onto the purchase
line;

Score

2-Low

Risk Appetite &
Tolerance Within
Appetite
Within Tolerance

Poaching/ breakout/diseases;

Limited access to area around Spring Grove Dam; fire
management around dams; vandalism in Nagle tunnel.
Treatment approach:
Implementation of the formal stakeholder
management plan, fencing, security, patrolling and
monitoring, enforcement of rules and regulations,
reserve management plans, customer engagement
and interaction. Good relationships are maintained
with communities to help mitigate this risk.

Customer and Stakeholder
Perspective:
SO1 Increase Services and
Customers
Customer and Stakeholder
Perspective:
SO2 Increase Customer and
Stakeholder Value
Financial Perspective:
SO3 Improve Financial
Viability
Process Perspective:
SO4 Improve All Key Systems
Organisational Capacity
Perspective:
SO5 Improve Infrastructure
Assets
SO6 Improve Skills and
Competency
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Risk

Risk Name, Score
Cause, Context and Treatment
and Status		

Main Strategic Perspective
and Objectives

3

Sustainability of the
organisation

Customer and Stakeholder
Perspective:

Overall control
strength: Good 80%
Risk Owner: MD
Score

Cause and Context:
Unfavorable weather/economic and social conditions
Reduction of recreational area as a result of expansion/
lease agreements and/or development around the
reserves
Loss of reserves through land claims
An emerging trend has been identified:  reduction   in
number of visitors.

1-Low

Risk Appetite &
Tolerance
Within Appetite
Within Tolerance

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure
Ongoing drought resulting in a financial loss due to
severe weather conditions and loss of game

SO1 Increase Services and
Customers
SO2 Increase Customer and
Stakeholder Value

Financial Perspective:
SO3 Improve Financial Viability

Treatment approach:

Process Perspective:

In order to achieve sustainability and growth, Msinsi
Holdings requires enhancement of current revenues
as well as implementing new revenue generation plans
within the current business model.

SO4 Improve All Key

Water sports are the main attraction at Albert Falls
Dam and Bon

Organisational Capacity
Perspective:

Accorde and there has been a reduction in water
sports and related revenues due to the drought and
consequent drop in water levels in the dams. The
decline in visitor numbers at all Msinsi sites still
prevails due to the adverse economic conditions,
dropping water in levels at the dams as a consequence
of drought and changing weather patterns.

SO5 Improve Infrastructure
Assets

Systems

SO6 Improve Skills and
Competency

Diverse Product Mix Offered
•

The Edamini Lounge at Hazelmere - the status
remains at 95% complete and is awaiting
confirmation of GPS co-ordinates to obtain the
liquor and butcher’s licenses.

•

The status of the Conference Facility at
Bon Accorde whose completion status improved
from 90% to 95% - the project is anticipated to be
completed by 30 September 2017.

•

The cruise boat at Inanda Dam is not yet
operational and is still awaiting certification by the
relevant authority.

•

Cost containment plans are also being
implemented to address Msinsi’s expenditure.

Table 5.2: Risk Cause, Context and Treatment

Mitigated Risks
A mitigated risk refers to risks that have been reduced to an acceptable level with continual monitoring by Internal Audit, to
ensure that the controls in place are still effective and efficient. Operational risks have been identified and their control provides
a more tactical approach in mitigating identified risks.

Emerging Risks
In line with the regular revision of the strategy, the organization regularly reviews the internal and external landscapes that
affect Msinsi’s risk profile, with the intention of identifying emerging risks. Therefore the following emerging operational risks
were identified as at the end of the year under review:
•

Climate change remains on the radar as an emerging risk

•

Private land owners requesting lease agreements within the purchase line

•

Private developers encroaching on Msinsi areas
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6

HUMAN RESOURCES REVIEW

Introduction

Msinsi Holdings is a service organisation, Human Resources
(HR) forms part of the core of our business and service
delivery. This report covers the Human Resources activities for
the period 01 July 2016 to 30 June 2017. As at 30 June 2017,
Msinsi permanent staff comprised 116 employees.  Msinsi
continuously partners with, and takes responsibility for, the
communities within which its reserves operate.
The HR priorities for the year included inter alia filling of
vacancies with a skilled and competent workforce, employee
development, improvement of the implementation of the
performance management system, and no repeat audit findings
including irregular and wasteful expenditure.
Employee wellness continuously took priority, hence wellness
days were held during the year under review. Updating of HR
policies to be in line with legislation took precedence.
Investment in people has been an ongoing exercise and, in
this regard, 228 employees were trained in various training
programmes, with 3 620 hours spent on skills development.
Employees are also encouraged through staff information
sessions, to offer input for achieving sustainability of the
organisation. Future plans include development of a strategic
human resource plan for the organisation.
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Human Resources Plan
Year on year implementation of the Human Resources Plan
is underway. The plan was developed following the four
perspectives of the balanced scorecard, namely:
•

Customer and Stakeholder Perspective

•

Financial Perspective

•

Process Perspective

•

Organisational Capacity Perspective

Workforce Planning and Recruitment
Msinsi permanent staff establishment is presented in Table 6.1,
and is outlined according to occupational levels, gender and
race.
As at 30 June, Msinsi staff establishment was as follows:
•

There were 129 permanent posts, of which 116 were filled

•

22 Security Officers and 19 were filled
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Occupational Levels
Top Management
Senior Management
Professional qualified and experienced specialists and mid-management
Skilled technical and academically qualified workers, junior management,
supervisors, foremen and superintendants
Semi-skilled and discretionary decision making
Unskilled and defined decision making

Figure 6.1 Occupational Levels

Employment Status by Race and Gender

Figure 6.2 Race 					

Figure 6.3 Gender

Msinsi continues to review the demographics in order to align with the KZN Economically Active Population (EAP).

Recruitment
Twelve (12) employees, including the Managing Director, and the HOD Corporate Services were recruited during the year
under review.
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Male

Occupational Levels

Total

Female

A

C

I

W

A

C

I

W

Top management

1

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

1

Senior management

0

0

0

0

1

0

0

0

1

Professionally qualified
and experienced
specialists and
mid-management

0

0

0

0

1

0

0

0

1

Skilled technical and
academically qualified
workers, junior
management,
supervisors, foremen,
and superintendents

0

0

0

0

3

0

0

0

3

Semi-skilled and
discretionary decision
making

2

0

0

0

1

0

0

0

3

Unskilled and defined
decision making

3

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

3

TOTAL PERMANENT
ENGAGEMENTS

6

0

0

0

6

0

0

0

12

Note: A=Africans, C=Coloureds, I=Indians and W=White
Table 6.4: Engagements

Staff Turnover
Staff turnover for the year under review is 5.2% against a
target of 8%.

Employment Relations Management
The framework of collective bargaining had been created by
entering into a recognition agreement with the National Health
and Allied Workers Union (NEHAWU). Trade union membership
is a voluntary association for all employees. Up to 72% of
employees, including contract employees were trade union
members during the year under review.
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All scheduled engagement meetings with the union were
achieved during the year under review.

Learning and Development
Learning and development priority was on achieving employee
development requirements as per the Individual Development
Plans (IDPs) set out in the performance contracts. A skills audit
was also undertaken in the previous year, and the skills gaps
identified were addressed in the Workplace Skills Plan for the
year under review.
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Employees were also given an opportunity for development through the assisted education scheme, and 3.4% participated by
studying towards the approved qualifications in this regard. The skills acquired were critical for the company to achieve its strategic
objectives and mandate. Table 5.6 illustrates qualifications studied in this regard:

Qualification

Number of employees

Master in Business Administration

1

National Certificate in Travel and Tourism

1

B-Tech in Human Resources Management

1

B Com Honours in Marketing Management

1

Total

4

Table 6.6: Assisted Education Granted

Learnership Programme
A total of 31 learners from the local communities enrolled
in a Learnership Programme for a National Certificate in
Accommodation Services. This is an annual programme and
will be completed in October 2017.

Graduate Internship Programmes
Thirteen (13) graduate interns were recruited and commenced
the programme on the 10th of January 2017 - it will terminate
in January 2018. The programme was offered by Tourism
World in partnership with the National Skills Foundation, and a
monthly stipend was payable to graduate interns.

Salary Costs
Employee cost amounted to R33 986 501 and the cost is
within budget.

Employee Wellness
Peer educators were elected and the Peer Educator
Programme was implemented in conjunction with that of
Umgeni Water. Several wellness programmes took place at the
reserves during staff meetings, and these included amongst
others:

•

The individual performance targets had been met as per
individual performance contracts; and

•

The organisation can afford to pay the
performance bonuses.

•

Subject to Board approval to pay performance bonuses.

Policy Reviews
Two policies, namely: Leave and Termination Policies were
reviewed to align them with existing labour laws. These
policies were subsequently approved by the Board for
implementation.

Job Profile Reviews and Job Profile Development
A total of ten (10) job profiles were reviewed or developed and
these are listed below:
•

Divisional Head: Operations

•

HR Officer

•

Handyman

•

Specialist ICT Technician

•

Handyman Assistant

•

Information and awareness of HIV/AIDS and Tuberculosis

•

Assistant Finance Manager

•

Voluntary free testing

•

Landscaper

•

Stress management

•

ICT Manager

•

Forms of abuse

•

Procurement and Finance Administrator

•

Alcoholism

•

Executive Secretary

Wellness programmes held at reserves:

Performance Management, Alignment to
Strategy and Reward
The Performance Management System of Msinsi requires
that managers conclude performance agreements. These
are aligned to the strategic objectives and targets applicable
to the year when they are concluded. Strategy linked
performance is linked to rewards - performance bonuses are
paid subject to all of the following being met:
•

The organisation’s balanced scorecard targets had been
well met as set out in the business plan;

•

The divisional balance scorecard targets had been met as
per divisional business plans;
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The purpose of reviewing the job profiles was to align with
changing job requirements.

Staff Information Sessions
Management had ensured that all employees were kept
up to date with any changes taking place in the company.
Three staff information sessions were held during the year
under review. Proceedings of these meeting are recorded for
purposes of addressing issues, as may be required.

Human Resources Information System
Msinsi is linked to Umgeni Water’s SAP information system
which was introduced in March 2017.

53

7

MARKETING AND STAKEHOLDER
REVIEW

Nagle Dam Resort Conference Centre

Marketing Overview
The company has been continuously faced with challenges that
have impacted negatively on its ability to generate revenue. A
number of marketing initiatives were implemented as mitigating
measures in order to remedy the current financial status of the
company.

Marketing initiatives
A number of marketing campaigns were implemented under
the ‘wellness through nature’ theme. These campaigns created
awareness and educated the public on the importance of
nature and, as a result, promoted Msinsi reserves as a preferred
nature destination. Some of the campaigns were:
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•

30 in 30 Reconnect with Nature campaign

•

Wellness through Nature Festive campaign

•

Nature educational school activations

•

International Earth Day and Arbor Day awareness events

Msinsi has recognized the importance of keeping a nontoxic connection between human beings and nature, through
different marketing initiatives that reconnect human beings
with nature. All six Msinsi resorts provide such tranquillity.
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Macro Factors

Integrated Marketing Channels

There are various macro factors that have also negatively
impacted on the generation of revenue, such as:

There are various marketing channels that the Marketing
Division utilised to reach the Msinsi target audience. The
following channels were utilised:

•

Economic Factors

Channel

Number

The adverse economic conditions in the country have had a
negative impact on the disposable income of Msinsi’s potential
customers. This is likely to reduce visitor numbers and,
therefore, revenue.

Print

14

Radio

12

Website/Digital

12

•

Activations

8

Schools visited

4

Exhibitions

3

Below the line
(Msinsi Newsletter,
SMS, Emailer)

8

Events

2

Social Media posts

1 176

Social Media videos

10

Weather Conditions

Water sports remain one of the main attractions at Msinsi.
Low water levels in the dams result in low numbers of people
participating in water sports activities. On the other hand,
rainy days also impact negatively on visitor numbers, as visitor
numbers to the dams on these days are virtually nil.

•

Changing Demographics

Over the years, visitor demographics have changed from being
predominantly dominated by a white middle class customer
base. This change in demographics is accompanied by the
need to review the product mix to suit all visitors.

•

SAMSA Regulations

Although these measures have been introduced to ensure the
safety of boat users, they have resulted in a drop in visitor
numbers for boat-related activities at Msinsi. The reason is that
some customers feel that complying with these regulations is
too onerous, time consuming and costly.

•

Marketing Objectives

The 2016/2017 objectives for the Marketing Department
were to:
•

Build the Msinsi brand

•

Increase visitor numbers

•

Increase the Msinsi customer database

•

Increase stakeholder relations

•

Stimulate sales

Table 7.1: Marketing Channels Utilised in 2016/17

Msinsi Club EDEN
The Msinsi Club EDEN is aimed at creating awareness and
educating the target market on the importance and benefits
of spending time in nature. The Club is free to join, easy and
fun for every member of the family. It is designed to kick-start
a state whereby our customers embrace the benefits that our
facilities offer in terms of connection with nature. This concept
will be used as a cost-effective tool to gather customer
insights and provide relevant products to our customers, while
keeping up with the current market trends where the concept
of loyalty clubs is widely used.
The objectives of Club EDEN are:
•

To build a database of people

•

To get meaningful insights from customers through
surveys and questionnaires

•

To email promo packages to the database

•

To expose the brand of Msinsi to thousands of new
potential customers

•

To give people a chance to spend time in nature, in a way
that is both calming and fun.

We are mindful of the fact that what we are trying to achieve
is a change in the behaviour and lifestyle of people, and will
embark on activities to encourage them to spend more time
in nature.
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Promoting Msinsi Products and Services
Msinsi products and services are communicated to customers in the following manner:
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•

The website: www.msinsi.co.za is utilised to inform, promote and market Msinsi products.

•

Social media: Msinsi updates social media constantly to inform customers/fans of up-to- date
events which are of interest to everyone. The social media platforms are: Facebook, Twitter,
Instagram, LinkedIn and You-Tube

•

Newsletter: The Msinsi newsletter is distributed through Mailchimp on a quarterly basis, designed
to inform and promote Msinsi products.

•

Database: Interactions with customers on the database include Msinsi news, special offers,
competitions or any other Msinsi initiatives. The database is also linked to Mailchimp for subscribers
to subscribe directly through the website.

•

Wild Card: Wild Card advertising is used to the maximum as the Wild Card members/ cardholders
form part of the Msinsi target market. Msinsi entered into a partnership with Tip Africa (Wild
publishers) to share Facebook posts and distribute Msinsi specials in their monthly email newsletter.
Msinsi will also advertise in every issue of the Wild Magazine which is distributed quarterly.

•

Competitions: Competitions are run constantly via Facebook and email. Prizes vary as per the
budget allocation.

•

Flyers: Flyers are distributed to promote any Msinsi owned events and special offers.

•

Trade shows: Participation in trade shows such as Tourism Indaba and KZN Travel & Advenature
Show puts Msinsi in line with global and comparable organisations.

•

Partnerships: Forming partnerships with organisations and individuals who assist in achieving the
objective of building the Msinsi brand, is one of the priorities. Umgeni Water, KwaZulu-Natal
Sharks Board, Ezemvelo KZN Wildlife etc., are just a few organisations with which it’s beneficial to
form partnerships.

•

Sponsorship: As part of the brand positioning, Msinsi sponsors environmental and social events
and activities.

•

Media: In order to reach all customer segments and those who are not familiar with digital and
social media, newspaper advertising is carried out in the local newspapers and radio stations.

•

Events participation: Msinsi-owned events will be segmented according to the target market and
age groups e.g. media exposure, educational segment or segment specific.
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CORPORATE SOCIAL INVESTMENT
OVERVIEW

Introduction
Corporate Social Investment (CSI) has become one of the
standard business practices in this day and age. Msinsi takes
the CSI concept as a crucial component of enhancing the
company’s competitiveness. As a result, continuously reviewing
and aligning the company’s CSI policies and procedures has
become imperative. Additionally, a number of initiatives have
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been supported in 2016/2017 as Msinsi aims at achieving a
positive impact on communities in areas around the six dams it
manages.
Msinsi supports different social investment projects in order
to contribute to the improvement of the socio-economic
conditions of communities around Msinsi’s areas of operation.
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CSI Committee
The CSI committee has been established in terms of the CSI policy, and the committee recommends submitted CSI proposals
for approval as per the Delegation of Authority Framework (DOAF).

Name of event

Date of event

Brief description of the event

Ward 1 Sport Committee

14/04/17

Sponsorship for a sports event.

Thembelihle Senior Citizen Club

11/07/16

Hand craft project sponsor.

Table 8.1: CSI Programme Implemented at Albert Falls Dam

Name of event

Date of event

Brief description of the event

Mandela Day at Inanda Mountain

18/07/16

Remove trash from the

		

Inanda Mountain

Ngcolosi Junior Soccer Tournament

Sponsorship for local

23/07/16

		

soccer tournament

1000 Hills Sailing

Training boys in speed boats,

20/11/16

		

sailing and nautical knot tying

Ngcolosi Senior Soccer Tournament

Sponsorship for local

25/12/17

		

soccer tournament

Table 8.2: CSI Programmes implemented at Inanda Dam

Name of event

Date of event

Brief description of the event

Masijabule High School

11/01/17

School career expo and school’s

		

40th anniversary

Swayimane TC

Support for family in need

4/05/17

Table 8.3: CSI Programme implemented at Nagle Dam
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ENVIRONMENTAL EDUCATION
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A number of environmental education programmes have been implemented in all reserves and these are presented in
the table below:
Period
Theme
Participating Institution
		 Grade/s		
		 (age)

Number of
participants

Materials and
method used

Lessons learnt/
improvements

02/02/17

24

- Natural wetland
visit

-Environmental
dialogue amongst
mixed ages.

World
Wetlands
Day

9 to 13
years
14 to 18
years

-Phangindawo PS
-Nonzila PS

- Wetland
vegetation

-Masijabule HS
-Inhlanhla HS

22/03/17

25/03/17

National
Water Week

International
Earth Hour

7 to 9 years

-Phangindawo PS

10 to 14
years

-Nonzila PS

10 to
14 years

-Nonzila PS

Day of
forests and
trees

64

-UW water week
posters

-Children
experienced the
wetland for the first
time.
-Understanding of
waste water.

-Waste water for
irrigation

51

-Phangindawo PS

-Illustrating books
on renewable
energy
-Indigenous trees
planted

-Solar system and
hydropower
-Exposure to
functioning hydro
power plant.
-Importance of
exposing children
and teachers to
Msinsi operations

22/04/17

Earth Day

9 to
14 years

Phangindawo PS

10

Electrical lights in
the classroom

-Msinsi identified
the need to
encourage
teachers to allow
participation in
environmental
education, and
them playing a role
as educators.
-Environmental
education
competitions on
an annual basis
were identified
as important
incentives.
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Period
Theme
Participating Institution
		 Grade/s		
		 (age)

Number of
participants

Materials and
method used

Lessons learnt/
improvements

22/05/17

71

-Class presentation
by posters

-Learners realised
the role of Msinsi
in biodiversity
conservation and
the contribution
they can make
towards biodiversity
conservation.

International
Biodiversity
Day

15 to 18
years

uMmbambangalo
HS

-Safety of visitors.
05/06/17

21& 22/
06/17

World
15 to 18
Environmental years
Day

Inhlanhla HS

Fire season

-Inhlanhla

7 to 14
years
15 to 18
years

68

-Poster design by
schools
-Poster
presentation

1800

-uMmbambangalo
-Masijabule
-Phangindawo
-Nonzila

Working on Fire
from Shongweni
conducted talks,
practical and fire
drills

-Learners displayed
an understanding
of environmental
management
through designing
posters.

Working on Fire
from Shongweni
conducted talks,
practical and fire
drills
Learnt about use of
fire as a management
tool as well as the
dangers of fire.
Fire drills and
significance thereof.

Table 9.1: Environmental Education Initiatives at Nagle Dam & Game Reserve
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Period
Theme
Participating Institution
		 Grade/s		
		 (age)

Number of
participants

Materials and
method used

16/07/17

71

Fishing rods, baits

Biodiversity

Grade 2,3,5

Curro PS

Lessons learnt/
improvements

The scholars were
taught:
-fishing techniques
-biodiversity
management
-shoreline cleaning

05/09/16

Arbor Day

Grade 9 &
10

Hlahlindlela HS

16

Garden equipment

These students are
part of the “GO
GREEN” team which is
the initiative of the
school. The team is
involved in waste
recycling campaigns
and other		
environmentally
friendly projects.
On this day, they
learnt how to plant,
and about the
importance of trees
and any plants in
general.

27/11/16

Environmental
Sustainability

Age groups
21-35

Mt Zion

50

N/A

Appreciation of
nature and the role
of human beings
in sustaining the
environment.

17/03/17

Lesson on
Tourism

Grades 11
& 12

Waterfall College

6

Writing stationery

Conservation and
tourism lesson was
presented to the
scholars at the dam

03/03/17

Earth day
with the
community

Age groups
16-45

Maqadini and
Skebheni local
communities

22

Cleaning materials

Marketing
department,
Maqadini and
Skebheni community
members, Inanda
dam staff together
with Miss Earth
to campaign for
pollution control.

16/06/17

SA sailing
clinics
during Youth
Day

Age groups
10-25

-Khanyisani PS

42

Boats, tyres etc.

Dance show
delivered by Nyuswa
scholars, and
speeches on various
environmental topics
were presented to
the scholars.

40

Buckets, water, fruit
and tyres.

Importance of open
spaces and how
they are beneficial
to human beings.

-Myeka HS
-Umgeni PS
-Nyuswa Youth
-Forest View PS

28/06/17

Open spaces
and their
significance

5 and 6
years

Khanyisani

Table 9.2: Environmental Education Initiatives at Inanda Dam & Resort
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Period
Theme
Participating Institution
		 Grade/s		
		 (age)

Number of
participants

Materials and
method used

Lessons learnt/
improvements

10/07/17

Leadership
Training

Grade 10

Gabigabi HS

18

Nature Walk and
Game Drive

Environmental
awareness and
leadership

07/09/16

Leadership
Training

Grade 10

Mconjwana HS

18

Nature Walk and
Game Drive

Environmental
awareness and
leadership

11/09/16

Leadership

Grade 10

Adams College

18

Nature Walk and
Game Drive

Environmental
awareness and
leadership

24/09/16

Arbor week

9 to 18 years

-Albert Falls PS
-Vuka PS
-Mpolweni HS

30

Presentations and
practical

Indigenous trees
and tree planting

09/03/17

Environmental
Awareness

9 to 13 years

Albert Falls PS

20

Presentations and
practical

Indigenous trees
and tree planting

22/03/17

Environmental
Awareness

9 to 13 years

Albert Falls PS

15

Presentations and
practical

Indigenous trees
and tree planting

24/03/17

Environmental
Awareness

9 to 10 years

Clan PS

15

Presentations and
practical

Indigenous trees
and tree planting

03/04/17

Environmental
presentation
and game
drive

10 to 16
years

Ekuthuthukeni
Orphanage

50

Presentation and
game drive

Environmental and
Wildlife

21/04/17

Earth Day

9 to 13 years

Albert Falls PS

30

Presentation, game
drive and practical

Wildlife and
conservation

28/06/17

Earth Day

14 to 18
years

Mpolweni HS

45

Presentation and
practical

Environmental,
wildlife and
conservation

Table 9.3: Environmental Education Initiatives at Albert Falls Dam and Game Reserve
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Period
Theme
Participating Institution
		 Grade/s		
		 (age)

Number of
participants

Materials and
method used

Lessons learnt/
improvements

01/09/16

Arbor Day

4-13 years

Hazelmere JP

25

Practical tree
planting and
watering plants

Learners attained
skills in tree
planting and
biodiversity

09/02/17

Swimming
Awareness

4-13 years

Hazelmere JP

19

Classroom
presentation

Interaction
between learners
and presenter.
Identified the need
to take learners
to the dam for
experiential
learning

13/03/17

Water Week

Samsung
Staff

Samsung based at
Dube Tradeport

20

Presentation on
water conservation

Corporate
relationship was
formed.
Samsung
collaborated
with Hazelmere
on clean-up
campaign.

30/03/17

Dam Safety

7-13 years

Hazelmere JP

19

Practical at
Hazelmere Dam, talk
on water safety and
a walk around the
dam

Practical at
Hazelmere Dam,
talk on water
safety and a walk
around the dam
Dam experiential
learning was
implemented,
as identified in
February 2017

Table 9.4: Environmental Education Initiatives at Hazelmere Dam & Resort

Period
Theme
Participating Institution
		 Grade/s		
		 (age)

Number of
participants

Materials and
method used

Lessons learnt/
improvements

07/09/16

Arbor Week

7-14 years

Egcekeni PS

45

Practical tree
planting

Learning about
trees and
importance of
indigenous plants

08/03/17

Fire
Awareness

16-18 years

Olwambeni HS

40

Class presentation
on dangers of fire
and prevention

Practical
experiments on
suppressing fire

13/03/17

Water Week

7-14 years

Charles PS

35

Water pollution
posters and
overhead
presentation

Conversation
between learners
and presenter
about water uses

14/03/17

Water Week

7-14 years

Nqobane PS

45

Poster
presentations,
Question and
Answer sessions

Learners were
taught about
water-borne
disease and
prevention of
infection.

Table 9.5: Environmental Education Initiatives at Shongweni Dam & Game Reserve

64

Msinsi Annual Report 2017

10

ORGANISATIONAL PERFORMANCE
OVERVIEW

10.1 Performance against predetermined
objectives
Msinsi Holdings implements its strategy through a balanced
scorecard, comprising four (4) Balanced Perspectives, four (4)
Strategic Goals, and six (6) Strategic Objectives.
The KPIs are further made up of twenty four (24) total annual
measurable Result Indicators, for which responsibilities and
accountabilities are agreed and targets approved within the
entity during the year under review.
Collectively, the scorecard enables the organisation to achieve
its ten (10) Outcomes and, ultimately, its mission/mandate
to manage the water resources and the environment around
dams.

10.2 Performance Report
Performance for the period under review is illustrated
graphically in the following Figures 10.1 to 10.4.
The organisation achieved overall performance of 85% which
is a decrease from 91% achieved in 2015/16. The adverse
variance of 15% is as a result of:
* Not achieving financial targets
* Unresolved internal audit findings
* Not reviewing operational management plans
* Not implementing revenue project activities at Shongweni
Reserve

15%

85%

Figure 10.1: Organisational Targets
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Figure 10.2: Performance Trends
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Figure 10.3 Divisional Performance Trend

No. of Indicators

Planned and Achieved Indicators

Msinsi

MD

CS

OPS

Planned Indicators 2016

25

6

17

16

Achieved Indicators 2016

22.68

5.75

16

13.28

Planned Indicators 2016

24

7

15

14

Achieved Indicators 2016

20.39

6.5

11.37

11.39

Figure 10.4 Number of planned and achieved indicators per Division
Detailed performance analysis of Msinsi is illustrated in the attached report on page 67 to 85.

Overall Performance
Performance

Variance

15%

85%

Figure 10.6
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Performance by STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE

SO: Increase
SO: Increase
services and
customer and
customers
stakeholder
		value

S03: Improve
S04: Improve all
Financial
key systems
viability		

SO5: Improve
infrastructure
and assets

SO6: Increase
skills and
competency

Variance

-6%

-7%

-40%

-18%

0%

0%

Performance

94%

93%

60%

82%

100%

100%

GOAL 4

Figure 10.7

Performance by STRATEGIC GOAL

GOAL 1

GOAL 2

GOAL 3

Variance

-6%

-40%

-18%

0%

Performance

94%

60%

82%

100%

Strategic Goal 1 (SO1 & SO2)
Improve services and be a key partner in the provision of sustainable environmental and
biodiversity management services around water resource dams
Strategic Goal 2 (SO3)
Improve funding and financial management
Strategic Goal 3 (SO4)
Improve efficiency of all inputs.
Strategic Goal 4 (SO5 &SO6)
Strengthen and develop quality human resources, infrastructure capacity and water resources
sustainability to support growth.
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Figure 10.8

Variance Report
Variance is largely due to eight (8) Result Indicators not being completely met.

1.

Project EDEN recreational activities implemented

2.

Annual review of operational management plans

3.

Debt to Equity ratio

4.

Total expenditure, Rm and per cent variance

5.

Number of breaches in materiality and significance framework

6.

Biodiversity Management Plan developed and implemented: Alien Plants, Fire Management

7.

Unqualified external audit report with no matters of emphasis (clean audit)

8.

Number of repeat and unresolved findings

More details of specific issues and turnaround plan follow.
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Strategic Goal 1
Improve services and be a key partner in the provision of sustainable environmental and biodiversity management services
around water resource dams
SO 1: Increase services and customers
KPI 1: The extent to which the entity has grown its services and customers.
Departmental Indicator

Performance %

Target and Actuals

Number of Project EDEN
89%
≥12 planned activities
recreational activities 		
at Shongweni
implemented		
4 Project Eden activities
		
implemented
			
			

Variance and Turnaround Plan
8 activities below target
Planned events were cancelled.
Msinsi is in the process
of relocating its operations from
Shongweni as part of the finalisation
of the Land Claim.

SO 2: Increase customer and stakeholder value
KPI 2: The extent to which customer and stakeholder needs have been met.
Result Indicator

Performance %

Target and Actuals

Variance and Turnaround Plan

Annual review of
0%
5 Operational Management
Operational Management 		
Plans reviewed and
Plans		implemented

Review of Operational Management Plans
not conducted in 2016/2017

		
		
		

Review of Operational
Management Plans not
conducted in 2016/2017

Review of Operational
Management Plans to be
done in 2017/2018

Number of CSI initiatives
80%
undertaken 		

≥ 1 planned CSI initiative
at Hazelmere

The Planned CSI initiative was not
implemented in 2016/2017.

		
		

No CSI initiative undertaken at
Hazelmere in 2016/2017

Implementation of the
initiative scheduled for 2017/2018
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Strategic Goal 2
Expand and improve funding collaborations and financial management.
SO 3: Improve financial viability
KPI 3: Increased funding collaboration and funds mobilised for sustainable growth, expansion and access
Result Indicator

Performance %

Target and Actuals

Variance and Turnaround Plan

Debt to Equity ratio
50%
Debt to Equity ratio of 1.71
		
against an annual target of < 1
			

Debt to Equity ratio of 0.71 above target
Net losses as a result of a decrease in
retained income

			
			
			

The entity will be implementing a
turnaround plan to move the entity
towards a surplus position in 2017/2018

KPI 4: The extent to which there are sustainable financial returns for each system, area, region and the organisation
Result Indicator
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Performance %

Target and Actuals

Variance and Turnaround Plan

Total expenditure, Rm and 87%
R64.1m against annual target
per cent variance 		
of R56.5m.
			

R7.6m above budgeted expenditure.
A cost containment plan is in place for
implementation in 2017/2018.

Total surplus (loss), Rm
0%
R13.1m loss against a target
and per cent variance		
loss of R1m.
			
			

R12.9m above target loss of R1m.
The entity will be implementing a
turnaround plan to move the entity
towards a surplus position in 2017/2018

Total revenue, Rm and per 87%
R14.1m revenue against annual
cent variance		
target of R19.6m.
			
			
			
			
			

Revenue is R5.5m below target.
Msinsi is implementing land-based
recreational activities in all Msinsi
Reserves. This is supported by a focused
marketing strategy and packaging of land
based tourism will be implemented
in 2017/2018.

Number of breaches in
33%
materiality and significance 		
framework		
		
		

R 1 033 085 – Irregular
Expenditure related to
unbudgeted expenditure for
game capture and
insurance costs

Irregular Expenditure: Investigation
complete, findings were presented
to the Board. Board to make
final decision in 2017/2018.

		
		
		
		

R6 437 relates – Fruitless and
Wasteful Expenditure related to
interest charged on the
Msinsi Utility Accounts

Fruitless and Wasteful Expenditure:
Msinsi is in the process of recovering
these costs.
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Strategic Goal 3
Remove system constraints and blockages through innovative thinking and improve efficiency of all inputs.
SO 4: Improve all key systems
KPI 6: The extent to which business processes, policies and systems are enabling strategy implementation
Result Indicator

Performance %

Target and Actuals

Variance and Turnaround Plan

Biodiversity Management
96%
Alien Plant Management:
Plan developed and 		
386ha cleared of terrestrial
implemented: Alien Plants, 		
alien plants against target
Fire Management		
of 500ha at Shongweni
			

114ha below target.
Project delays due to
restricted access to site.
Remaining work will be carried out
in 2017/2018.

Unqualified external audit 83%
report with no matters of 		
emphasis (clean audit)		

Unqualified external audit
report with matters of
emphasis (clean audit).

This was a strategic decision
to ensure alignment
to group strategy

		
		
		
		
		

1 external audit from prior year:
Board of Directors Chaired by
Parent Company Chief Executive
Officer (non-compliant
with King III)

The matter is to be discussed
with the Umgeni Water Accounting
Authority with the outcome
anticipated in 2017/2018

Number of repeat and
50%
10 unresolved internal
unresolved findings		
audit findings against
		
target of zero
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Action plans in place to address
findings in 2017/2018.
More detail is provided in the
Internal Audit Report.
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Strategic Goal 1
Improve services and be a key partner in the provision of sustainable environmental and biodiversity management services
around water resource dams.
BALANCED SCORECARD PERSPECTIVE:

Customer and Stakeholder

OUTCOMES:

Stakeholder Understanding and Support
Community and Environmental Sustainability
Customer Satisfaction

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE:

SO1: Increase services and customers

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATOR:

The extent to which the entity has grown its services
and customers

Result Indicator (RI)

Departmental
Indicator (DI)
OPS

Project EDEN recreational activities implemented
Q4 Target

Actual

Variance

Turnaround Plan

≥84

85 recreational activities implemented

Nil

N/A

Number of Project EDEN recreational activities implemented: Albert Falls
≥24
24 activities implemented
Nil

N/A

Number of Project EDEN recreational activities implemented: Hazelmere
≥8

8 activities implemented

Nil

N/A

Number of Project EDEN recreational activities implemented: Inanda
≥20

20 activities implemented

Nil

N/A

Number of Project EDEN recreational activities implemented: Nagle
≥12

12 products implemented

Nil

N/A

Number of Project EDEN recreational activities implemented: Bon Accorde
≥16

17 products implemented

Nil

N/A

Number of Project EDEN recreational activities implemented: Shongweni
≥12
		

4 Project Eden activities implemented
8 activities
below target		

				
				
				
				
				
				
				
				
Result Indicator

Planned events
were cancelled.
Msinsi is in the
process of
relocating its
operations from
Shongweni as
part of the
finalisation of the
Land Claim

Project EDEN recreational activities implemented
≥84

85 recreational activities implemented

Nil

N/A

Number of marketing initiatives implemented to promote Msinsi products
≥ 20
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185 marketing initiatives implemented:
The Msinsi brand has been marketed on
various multimedia platforms including
print, radio, TV and social media.
See marketing report for more details.

Nil

N/A
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BALANCED SCORECARD PERSPECTIVE:

Customer and Stakeholder

OUTCOMES:

Stakeholder Understanding and Support
Product Quality
Customer Satisfaction
Community and Environmental Sustainability

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE:

SO 2: Increase customer and stakeholder value.

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATOR :

The extent to which customer and stakeholder
needs have been met.

Result Indicator (RI) Number of planned/targeted engagements with Umgeni Water Superintendents
Q4 Target

Actual

Variance

Turnaround Plan

≥16

20 engagements

Nil

N/A

Departmental
Number of planned/targeted engagements to review Service Level Agreement
Indicator (DI)
with Shareholder representative
MD
≥1
Scheduled engagement deferred Nil
N/A
		
by the Shareholder to Aug 2017
Departmental

Number of planned/targeted engagements with UW Superintendents: Nagle

Indicator (DI)

≥4

4 engagements:

		

26 September 2016

		

25 October 2016

		

2 February 2017

		

10 April 2017

Nil

N/A

Number of planned/targeted engagements with UW Superintendents: Albert Falls
≥4

4 engagements:

		

26 September 2016

		

28 November 2016

		

31 March 2017

		

26 June 2017

Nil

N/A

Number of planned/targeted engagements with UW Superintendents: Hazelmere
≥4

4 engagements:

		

4 August 2016

		

11 November 2016

		

24 March 2017

		

30 June 2017

Nil

N/A

Number of planned/targeted engagements with UW Superintendents: Inanda
≥4

8 engagements:

		

26 July 2016;2 September 2016

		

- 27 October 2016; 5 April 2017

		

- 5 and 12 May 2017

		

- 27 and 29 June 2017

Nil

Result Indicator

Number of engagements with contractual stakeholders: Employees, Union

(RI)

≥6

Departmental

Number of planned/targeted engagements with employees

Indicator (DI)

≥2

MD		

7 engagements
2 Staff information sessions:

Nil
Nil

N/A
N/A

7 October 2016; 26 April 2017

Departmental

Number of planned/targeted engagements with trade union (NEHAWU)

Indicator (DI)

≥4

5 meetings with Union:

CS		

- 13 September 2016;

		

- 1 November 2016;

		

- 28 November 2016.

		

- 15 February 2017.

		

- 8 June 2017
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N/A

Nil

N/A
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Result Indicator (RI) Number of planned/targeted engagements with Umgeni Water Superintendents
Q4 Target

Actual

Variance

Turnaround Plan

Number of engagements with strategic stakeholders (Nature Conservation, Tourism Bodies)
≥6
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20 engagements

Nil

Departmental

Number of engagements with agencies to form partnerships

Indicator (DI) MD

≥4

10 engagements:

		

- 15 November 2016;

		
		

- 12 September 2016 and
7 December 2016;

		

- 12 December 2016;

		

- 5 September 2016;

		

- September 2016;

		

- 25 - 26 October 2016

		

27 September 2016

		

- 22 February 2017

		

15 June 2017

		

- 25 May 2017

Nil

N/A
N/A

Departmental

Number of planned/targeted engagements with nature conservation bodies

Indicator (DI)

≥4

4 engagements:

OPS		

- 25 - 26 October 2016

		

- 27 September 2016

		

- 22 February 2017

		

- 19 April 2017

N/A

Departmental

Number of planned/targeted engagements with tourism bodies

Indicator (DI)

≥4

6 engagements:

CS		

- 27 September 2016;

		

- 25 October 2016;

		

- 22 February 2017

		

- 19 April 2017

		

- 16 May 2017

		

- 15 June 2017

Nil

N/A

N/A
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Result Indicator (RI)

Number of Engagements with non-contractual stakeholders: Amakhosi and Councellors
Q4 Target

Actual

Variance

Turnaround Plan

≥20

30 engagements

Nil

N/A

Departmental

Number of planned/targeted engagements with Amakhosi/Councillors: Albert Falls

Indicator (DI)

≥4

4 Engagements:

OPS		

26 September 2016;

		

20 December 2016;

		

20 March 2017;

		

6 June 2017

Nil

N/A

Number of planned/targeted engagements with Amakhosi/Councillors: Hazelmere
≥4

4 engagements with Ward 60

		

councillor: 4 August 2016;

		

30 November 2016;

		

24 March 2017; 30 June 2017

Nil

N/A

Number of planned/targeted engagements with Amakhosi/Councillors: Inanda
≥4

10 engagements:

Nil

N/A

		
- Visit by National House of
		
Traditional Leaders (25 Aug 2016);
		
		

- Briefing on current and future
developments (14 Sep 2016)

		
- GM OPS meeting KZN Agric Dept
		
on communal gardens and
		

fish farming;

		

- 4 Meetings with iNkosi Bhengu:

		
August 2016, 7 November,
		
11 November & 23 December 2016
		

- Meetings with Traditional

		

Leaders: 26 May 2017

		

- Maqadini Community

		

(20 June 2017)

		

- Meeting with iNkosi Ngcobo

		

(30 May 2017)

Number of planned/targeted engagements with Amakhosi/Councillors: Nagle
≥4

5 engagements as at Q4

Nil

N/A

Number of planned/targeted engagements with Amakhosi/Councillors: Shongweni
≥4
Result Indicator (RI)

6 engagements as at Q4

Nil

N/A

Number of submissions in respect of Quarterly Reports, Annual Report and Corporate Plan
Q4 Target

Actual

Variance

Turnaround Plan

≥7

7 submissions:

Nil

N/A

Nil

N/A

Nil

N/A

Nil

N/A

		

- 4 Quarterly Reports submitted

		

- Annual Report submitted

		

- Corporate Plan submitted

Departmental

Annual Report Submitted

Indicator (DI)

1 Annual

Annual Report submitted

CS

Report

and approved

Departmental

Quarterly Reports Submitted

Indicator (DI)

4 Quarterly

4 Quarterly Performance

MD

reports

Reports submitted

		

as at 30 June 2017

Departmental

Corporate Plan Submitted

Indicator (DI)

1 Corporate

Corporate Plan approved

MD

Plan

by Msinsi Board

		

on 21 April 2017

Departmental

Annual review of Operational Management Plans

Indicator (DI)

5 Operational

Review of Operational

Review of Operational

Review of Operational

OPS

Management

Management Plans not conducted

Management Plans not

Management Plans

Plans reviewed

in 2016/2017

conducted in 2016/2017

to be done in 2017/2018

& implemented
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Result Indicator (RI)

Number of water and environmental education initiatives for schools/communities implemented
Q4 Target
Actual
Variance
Turnaround Plan

≥20
29 initiatives undertaken
Nil
N/A
Departmental
Number of water and environmental education initiatives for schools/communities implemented: Albert Falls
Indicator (DI)
≥4
5 initiatives:
Nil
N/A
OPS		
- Arbor Day celebrations with
three local schools: Albert Falls
Primary; Mpolweni High School;
Vuka Primary School
(all September 2016).
- Hosted the Colombia Leadership
School initiative with the following
schools: Gabigabi High School
(10 July 2016); Mconjwana High
School (7 September 2016)
Adams College (11 September
2016); Albert Falls Primary School
(09, 22, 24 March 2017); Clan
Primary School (24 March 2017)
- Hosted Ekuthuleni Orphanage
School (3 April 2017)
- Hosted Albert Falls School on
Earth Day (21 April 2017)
- Mpolweni High School Enviro
Education Session (28 June
2017).
Number of water and environmental education initiatives for schools/communities implemented: Hazelmere
≥4
4 initiatives:
Nil
N/A
- Hazelmere Junior( Abor Day)
(Q1)
- Hazelmere Junior Primary
(Water Conservation) (Q3)
- Samsung - Water Conservation
Hazelmere Dam clean up (Q3)
- Hazelmere Junior Primary
Enviro Education Session held at
Hazelmere Dam (Q3)
Number of water and environmental education initiatives for schools/communities implemented: Inanda
≥4
8 initiatives as at Q4
Nil
N/A
Number of water and environmental education initiatives for schools/communities implemented: Nagle
≥4
8 initiatives as at Q4
Nil
N/A
Number of water and environmental education initiatives for schools/communities implemented: Shongweni
≥4
8 initiatives as at Q4
Nil
N/A

Result Indicator (RI)

Departmental
Indicator (DI)
OPS

Number of CSI initiatives undertaken
Q4 Target
Actual
≥5
10 initiatives undertaken
Number of CSI initiatives undertaken: Albert Falls
≥1
2 CSI initiatives undertaken:

Variance

Turnaround Plan

Nil

N/A

Nil

N/A

Number of CSI initiatives undertaken: Hazelmere
Nil
≥1
No CSI initiatives undertaken
No CSI initiatives
			
undertaken
				
				
Number of CSI initiatives undertaken: Inanda
≥1
4 CSI initiatives implemented
Nil
Number of CSI initiatives undertaken: Nagle
≥1
2 CSI initiatives implemented
Nil
Number of CSI initiatives undertaken: Shongweni
≥1
2 CSI initiatives implemented
Nil
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N/A
Planned CSI initiave not
implemented
Initiative to be undertaken
in 2017/2018
N/A
N/A
N/A
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Strategic Goal 2
Expand and improve funding collaborations whilst managing key cost drivers.
BALANCED SCORECARD PERSPECTIVE:

Financial

OUTCOMES:

Financial Viability

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE:

SO 3: Improve financial viability

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATOR :

Increased funding collaboration and funds mobilised
for sustainable growth, expansion and access

Result Indicator (RI)

Departmental
Indicator (DI)
CS

Result Indicator
(RI)

Current ratio
Q4 Target
≥1
Current ratio
Same as corporate

Debt to Equity ratio
Q4 Target

Actual

Variance

Turnaround Plan

1.07

Nil

N/A

Same as corporate

Same as corporate

Same as corporate

Actual

Variance

Turnaround Plan

<1
1.71
0.71 above target
				

Net losses as a result of a
decrease in retained income

				
				
				
				
				
Departmental
Debt to Equity ratio
Indicator (DI)
Same as corporate
Same as corporate
Same as corporate
CS
Debt ratio
<1
0.63
Nil
Same as corporate
Same as corporate
Same as corporate

The entity will be
implementing a turnaround
plan to move the entity
towards a surplus position
in 2017/2018
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Same as corporate
N/A
Same as corporate
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BALANCED SCORECARD PERSPECTIVE:
OUTCOMES:
STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE:
KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATOR :

Result Indicator (RI)

Total expenditure, Rm and per cent variance
Q4 Target
Actual

Variance

Turnaround Plan

R56.5m ±10%
R64.1m
R7.6m above
			
budgeted expenditure
				
				
				
				

Repairs and maintenance,
unbudgeted-for expenses
incurred from unplanned
operating activities
adversely affected
expenditure

				
				
				
Departmental
Total expenditure, Rm and per cent variance
Indicator (DI)
Same as corporate
Same as corporate
Same as corporate
CS

A cost containment plan is
in place for implementation
in 2017/2018.

Result Indicator (RI)
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Financial
Financial Viability
SO3: Improve financial viability
The extent to which there are sustainable financial returns
for each system, area, region and the organisation.

Total surplus (loss), Rm and per cent variance
Q4 Target
Actual

Variance

Same as corporate

Turnaround Plan

(R1m) ±10%
R13.1m loss
R12.9m above target
			
loss of R1m
				
				
				
Departmental
Total revenue, Rm and per cent variance (from Operations)
Indicator (DI)
R19.6m ±10%
R14.1m
R5.5m below target
OPS				
				
				
				
				
				
				
Total revenue, Rm and per cent variance: Albert Falls
R7.31m ±10%
R4.29m
R3.02m below target
				

The entity will be
implementing a turnaround
plan to move the entity
towards a surplus position
in 2017/2018

				
				
				
				
				
				
Total revenue, Rm and per cent variance: Bon Accorde
R2.34m ±10%
R1.54m
R0.81m below target
				
				
				
				
				
				
				

implemented at all Msinsi
Reserves. An aggressive
marketing strategy and
packaging of land-based
tourism will be implemented
in 2017/2018.

Land-based recreational
activities are being
implemented at all Msinsi
Reserves. An aggressive
marketing strategy and
packaging of land-based
tourism will be implemented
in 2017/2018.
Land-based recreational
activities are being

Land-based recreational
activities are being
implemented at all Msinsi
Reserves. An aggressive
marketing strategy and
packaging of land-based
tourism will be implemented
in 2017/2018.
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Q4 Target

Actual

Variance

Turnaround Plan

R2.34m ±10%

R1.54m

R0.81m below target

Land-based recreational

				

activities are being

				

implemented at all Msinsi

				
				
				
				
				

Reserves. An aggressive
marketing strategy and
packaging of land-based
tourism will be implemented
in 2017/2018.

Total revenue, Rm and per cent variance: Hazelmere
R1.76m ±10%
R2.12m
Nil
		
R0.36m above target
Total revenue, Rm and per cent variance: Inanda
R4.26m ±10%
R2.84m		
		
R1.42m below target		
				
				

N/A

Delays with the introduction
of cruise boat and low
occupancy rates negatively
affected anticipated revenue

				
				
				
				
				
				
				
				
Total revenue, Rm and per cent variance: Nagle
R1.16m ±10%
R0.80m
R0.36m below target
				
				
				
				
Total revenue, Rm and per cent variance: Shongweni
R2.10m ±10%
R1.78m
R0.31m below target
				
				
				
				
				

Land-based recreational
activities are being 		
implemented at all Msinsi
Reserves. An aggressive
marketing strategy and
packaging of land-based
tourism will be implemented
in 2017/2018.

				
				

Visitor numbers remained
low after this incident.

				
				
				
				
				
Departmental
Total Environmental Management levy, (Rm) received
Indicator (DI)
R37m ±10%
R37m
Nil

Msinsi is in the process of
relocating its operations
from Shongweni as part of
the finalisation of the
Land Claim.
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An aggressive marketing
strategy and packaging of
land-based recreational
activities will be introduced
in 2017/2018.
Runoff from spillage 		
of chemical cargo from
freight train ended up at
Shongweni Dam, which led
to suspension of selected
recreational activities (Q2).

N/A
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Result
Indicator (RI)

Number of breaches in materiality and significance framework
Q4 Target
Actual
Variance
Nil
R 1 033 085 - Irregular
R 1 033 085 - Irregular
		
Expenditure related to
Expenditure related to
unbudgeted expenditure
unbudgeted expenditure
		
for game capture and
for game capture and
insurance costs
insurance costs
		
R6 437 relates - Fruitless
R6 437 relates - Fruitless
		
and Wasteful Expenditure
and Wasteful Expenditure
		
related to interest charged
related to interest
		
on the Msinsi
charged on the Msinsi
		
Utility Accounts
Utility Accounts
Departmental
Fruitless and Wasteful Expenditure and Irregular Expenditure
Indicator (DI)
Nil
Nil
Nil
MD
Departmental
Fruitless and Wasteful Expenditure and Irregular Expenditure
Indicator (DI)
Nil
R6 437 relates - Fruitless
R6 437 relates - Fruitless
CS		
and Wasteful Expenditure
and Wasteful Expenditure
		
related to interest
related to interest
		
charged on the Msinsi
charged on the Msinsi
		
Utility Accounts
Utility Accounts
Departmental
Fruitless and Wasteful Expenditure and Irregular Expenditure
Indicator (DI)
Nil
R 1 033 085 - Irregular
R 1 033 085 - Irregular
OPS		
Expenditure related to
Expenditure related to
unbudgeted expenditure for unbudgeted expenditure
		
game capture and
for game capture and
insurance costs
insurance costs
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Turnaround Plan
Irregular Expenditure:
Investigation complete,
findings were presented
to the Board. Board to
make final decision
in 2017/2018
Fruitless and Wasteful
Expenditure: Msinsi
is in the process of
recovering these costs
Nil

Fruitless and Wasteful
Expenditure: Msinsi
is in the process of
recovering these costs

Irregular Expenditure:
Investigation complete,
findings were presented
to the Board. Board to
make final decision
in 2017/2018
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Strategic Goal 3
Remove system constraints and blockages through innovative thinking and improve efficiency of all inputs.
BALANCED SCORECARD PERSPECTIVE:
OUTCOMES:
STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE:
KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATOR:

Result
Indicator (RI)

Process
Operational Resiliency, Operational Optimisation, and
Community and Environmental Sustainability
SO 4: Improve all key systems
The extent to which business processes, policies and systems
are enabling strategy implementation

Number of hectares cleared of terrestrial alien plants
Q4 Target
Actual
Variance
• 2472 ha
• 2546 ha
Nil
• Fire Management Plan • Fire Management Plan
100% implemented,
100% implemented:
67.8 km of fire-breaks 67.8 km of fire-breaks
		
and 802.5 ha block burns
• Preparations for 2017/
2018 fire season complete
Departmental
Number of hectares cleared of terrestrial alien plants: Hazelmere
Indicator (DI)
95 ha
179 ha
Nil
OPS
Number of hectares cleared of terrestrial alien plants: Inanda
17 ha
81 ha
N/A
Number of hectares cleared of terrestrial alien plants: Nagle
900 ha
940 ha
Nil
Number of hectares cleared of terrestrial alien plants: Shongweni
500 ha
386 ha
114ha below target
				

Turnaround Plan
N/A

N/A

N/A
N/A
Project delays due to
community unrest.
Remaining work will be carried out
in 2017/2018

				
Number of hectares cleared of terrestrial alien plants: Albert Falls
960ha
960 ha
Nil
N/A
Fire Management Plan developed and implemented: Albert Falls, Bon Accorde, Khayalami
≥24 km traces and fire 24 km of fire breaks
Nil
N/A
breaks completed
and 141 ha block
around perimeter fence; burns were burnt between
block burning
June - September 2016
completed; pre-burning
plan approved for
upcoming fire season
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Result
Indicator (RI)

Number of hectares cleared of terrestrial alien plants
Q4 Target
Actual
Variance
• 2472 ha
• 2546 ha
Nil
• Fire Management
• Fire Management
Plan 100%
Plan 100%
implemented. 67.8 km implemented. 67.8 km
of fire-breaks
of fire-breaks and
		
802.5 ha block burns
• Preparations for
2017/2018 fire eason
		 complete
Fire Management Plan developed and implemented: Inanda
≥ 1.8 km traces and
1.8 km of fire-breaks
Nil
fire breaks completed and 21.5 ha block burns
around perimeter fence; were burnt between
block burning
June – September 2016
completed; pre-burning
plan approved for
upcoming fire season
Fire Management Plan developed and implemented: Nagle
≥ 15 km traces and fire 15 KM of fire-breaks
Nil
breaks completed
and 330 ha block burns
around perimeter fence; completed between
block burning
Jun – Sep 2016;
completed; pre-burning
plan approved for
upcoming fire season
Fire Management Plan developed and implemented: Shongweni
≥ 22 km traces and fire 22 km of fire breaks
Nil
breaks completed
and 302 ha were
around perimeter fence; burnt between
block burning
June – September 2016
completed; pre-burning Block burning completed;
plan approved for
pre-burning plan
upcoming fire season
approved for upcoming
fire season
		
Msinsi is in the process
		
of relocating its operations
from Shongweni as part
of the finalisation of the
		
Land Claim
Fire Management Plan developed and implemented: Hazelmere
≥ 5 km traces and fire 5 km of fire breaks
Nil
breaks completed
were burnt between
around perimeter fence; June – September 2016;
block burning
a block of 8 ha was
completed; pre-burning burnt in Q3. Pre-burning
plan approved for
plan approved for
upcoming fire season
upcoming fire season
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Turnaround Plan
N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A
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Result
Indicator (RI)

Unqualified external audit report with no matters of emphasis (clean audit)
Q4 Target
Actual
Variance
Turnaround Plan
Unqualified external
Unqualified external
1 external audit finding This was a strategic decision
audit report with no
audit report with
from prior year:
to ensure alignment
matters of emphasis
matters of emphasis
Board of Directors
to group strategy
(clean audit).
1 external audit finding
chaired by Parent
The matter is to be discussed with
		
from prior year
Company Chief
the Umgeni Water Accounting
Executive Officer
Authority with the outcome
			
(non-compliant
anticipated in 2017/2018
with King III)
Material adjustments
			
to the Annual Financial
Statements which were
			
subsequently corrected
Departmental
Unqualified external audit report with no matters of emphasis (clean audit)
Indicator (DI)
Unqualified external
Unqualified external
1 external audit
This was a strategic decision
MD
audit report with
audit report
finding from
to ensure alignment to
no matters of emphasis 1 external audit
prior year:
group strategy
(clean audit).
finding from
Board of Directors
The matter is to be discussed
prior year
chaired by Parent
with the Umgeni Water
			
Company Chief Executive Accounting Authority with the
Officer (non-compliant outcome anticipated in 2017/2018
with King III)
Departmental
Unqualified external audit report with no matters of emphasis (clean audit)
Indicator (DI)
Unqualified external
Same as corporate
Same as corporate
Same as corporate
CS
audit report with no
matters of emphasis
(clean audit).
Departmental
Unqualified external audit report with no matters of emphasis (clean audit)
Indicator (DI)
Unqualified external
Same as corporate
Same as corporate
Same as corporate
OPS
audit report with no
matters of emphasis
(clean audit).
Result Indicator (RI)

Departmental
Indicator (DI)
CS
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Number of repeat and unresolved findings
Q4 Target
Actual
0 repeat; 0 unresolved 0 repeat.
10 unresolved findings
Number of repeat and unresolved findings
0 repeat; 0 unresolved 0 repeat.
10 unresolved findings

Variance
10 unresolved findings

Turnaround Plan
Refer to Internal Audit Report

10 unresolved findings

Refer to Internal Audit Report
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Result Indicator (RI)

Number of repeat and unresolved findings
Q4 Target
Actual
0 repeat; 0 unresolved 0 repeat.
10 unresolved findings

Variance
10 unresolved findings

Turnaround Plan
Refer to Internal Audit Report

1 unresolved finding
(AOPO March 2017):
Inadequate presentation
and consistency of
reported performance
information.
7 unresolved findings
(ICT Audit February
2017):
- Inadequate IT
governance structures
at Msinsi Holdings;
- Lack of IT function
in the Corporate
Organogram;
- User session timeout
not configured;
- Lack of installation of
Updates;
- Lack of review
and monitoring of
Administrator;
- Lack of Business
Continuity and IT
Disaster Recovery;
- Lack of Environmental
controls in the server
room
2 unresolved findings
(Application Control
Review March 2017):
- Pastel Application not
fully utilized as intended
by business;
- Lack of Service Level
Agreement (SLA) for
Pastel Support

Departmental
Indicator (DI)
CS
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Number of repeat and unresolved findings
0 repeat; 0 unresolved 0 repeat.
0 unresolved findings

Nil

N/A
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Strategic Goal 4

Strengthen and develop quality human resources, infrastructure capacity, and water resources sustainability to support growth.
BALANCED SCORECARD PERSPECTIVE:
OUTCOMES:
STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE:
KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATOR :

Organisational Capacity
Infrastructure Stability
SO 5: Improve infrastructure and assets
Infrastructure expenditure within target cash flows and
completion dates.

Result
Indicator (RI)

CAPEX Rm against budget and % variance
Q4 Target
Actual
Variance
Turnaround Plan
R20m±25%*
R9.7m against a target
Nil
N/A
		
of R10.8m (90%),
		
10% variance
Departmental
CAPEX Rm against budget and % variance
Indicator (DI)
Same as corporate
Same as corporate
Same as corporate
Same as corporate
OPS
* CAPEX targets were incorrectly configured in 2016/2017 (see CAPEX programme for more detail)
BALANCED SCORECARD PERSPECTIVE:
OUTCOMES:		
STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE:
KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATOR :

Organisational Capacity
Leadership and Employee Development
SO 6: Increase skills and competency
Effectiveness and efficiency of employee training and development programmes.

Result
Indicator (RI)

Number of job profiles/functions reviewed and optimized
Q4 Target
Actual
Variance
≥10
10 Job Profiles reviewed Nil
Departmental
Number of job profiles/functions reviewed and optimized
Indicator (DI)
≥10
8 Profiles reviewed and
Nil
CS		
aligned to strategy.
Result
Indicator (RI)

Number of In-service Trainees and Interns development plans met
Q4 Target
Actual
Variance
≥3
13 interns were recruited Nil
		
and placed in partnership
with the National Skills
		 Foundation.
Departmental
Number of In-service Trainees and Interns development plans met
Indicator (DI)
Same as corporate
Same as corporate
Same as corporate
CS
Result
Indicator (RI)

Number of temporary jobs created: Msinsi Reserves
Q4 Target
Actual
Variance
≥150
435 temporary jobs
Nil
		 created
Departmental
Number of temporary jobs created: Msinsi Reserves
Indicator (DI)
Same as corporate
Same as corporate
Same as corporate
OPS
Result
Indicator (RI)
Departmental
Indicator (DI)
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Number of staff terminations as a % of the total staff complement
Q4 Target
Actual
Variance
≤8%
5.2% labour turnover
Nil
Number of staff terminations as a % of the total staff complement
Same as corporate
Same as corporate
Same as corporate

Turnaround Plan
N/A
N/A

Turnaround Plan
N/A

Same as corporate

Turnaround Plan
N/A

Same as corporate

Turnaround Plan
N/A
Same as corporate
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MSINSI HOLDINGS (SOC) LIMITED
(Registration Number 1992/003933/30)
Annual Financial Statements for the period ended 30 June 2017

General Information
COUNTRY OF INCORPORATION AND DOMICILE

South Africa

NATURE OF BUSINESS AND PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

During the year, Msinsi Holdings (SOC) Ltd carried on the business
of Environmental and Conservation Management. The Company’s
mandate from Umgeni Water is to manage the land and water
surface of the dams owned or managed by Umgeni Water at a fee
and to provide recreational opportunities for the general public.
The bulk of the Company’s operations are located at the individual
dams namely; Albert Falls, Bon Accorde, Hazelmere, Nagle,
Shongweni, Inanda and Spring Grove.

REGISTERED OFFICE

Unit 1 and 2
Block C
18 Old Main Road
Hillcrest
3610

BUSINESS ADDRESS

Unit 1 and 2
Block C
18 Old Main Road
Hillcrest
3610

POSTAL ADDRESS

Msinsi Resorts and Game Reserves
Private Bag X1020
Hillcrest
3650

BANKERS

First National Bank

AUDITORS

SM XULU Inc

COMPANY REGISTRATION NUMBER

1992/003933/30

LEVEL OF ASSURANCE

These Annual Financial Statements have been audited in
compliance with the applicable requirements of the International
Financial Reporting Standards, the Companies Act 71 of 2008 and
Public Finance Management Act of 1999.

THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS WERE PREPARED BY:

Denise Govender
Financial Manager

THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS WERE REVIEWED BY:

Mbali Ngubane CA (SA)
Divisional Head: Corporate Services
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Directors’ Responsibilities and Approval
The Directors of the Company are responsible for the maintenance of adequate accounting records and the preparation and
integrity of the Annual Financial Statements and related financial information. The Annual Financial Statements have been
prepared in accordance with the requirements of the International Financial Reporting Standards, the Companies Act 71 of 2008
and the Public Finance and Management Act, 1999, of South Africa (“PFMA”).
The Directors acknowledge that they  are  also responsible for the system of internal control. These controls are designed to
provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance as to the reliability of the financial statements, and to adequately safeguard,
verify and maintain accountability of assets, and to prevent and detect material misstatement and losses. The systems are
implemented and monitored by suitably trained personnel with an appropriate segregation of authority and duties. Nothing has
come to the attention of the directors to indicate that any material breakdown in the functioning of these controls, procedures
and systems has occurred during the period under review.
The Annual Financial Statements have been prepared on the going concern basis, since the directors have every reason to believe
that the company will continue to receive support from Umgeni Water.  The letter of financial support from Umgeni Water is dated
30 September 2017.
Msinsi holdings continues to receive financial support from Umgeni Water for the work it conducts on behalf of Umgeni Water and
this ensures the Going Concern Status of Msinsi Holdings SOC Limited.
Approval of financial statements

Mboniseni Dlamini

The Annual Financial Statements set out on pages 86 to 116, were approved by the Accounting Authority on 14 September 2017,
and signed on their behalf by:
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Mboniseni Dlamini

Thami Hlongwa

Managing Director

Interim Board Chairman
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Annual Financial Statements for the period ended 30 June 2017

Declaration By The Company Secretary
DECLARATION BY THE COMPANY SECRETARY IN RESPECT OF SECTION 88(2)(e) OF THE COMPANIES ACT for the year ending
30 June 2017
I certify, in accordance with section 88(2)(e) of the Companies Act 71 of 2008, that for the period ended 30 June 2017, the
entity has lodged with the Companies Intellectual Property Commission (CIPC) all such returns as required by a state-owned
company in terms of this Act, and that all such returns are true and correct and up to date.

S D S Madonsela
Company Secretary
14 September 2017
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Directors’ Report
1.

NATURE OF BUSINESS
During the year Msinsi Holdings (SOC) Ltd carried on business of Environmental and Conservation Management. The
Company’s  mandate from Umgeni Water is to manage the land water surface of the dams owned or managed by Umgeni
Water for a fee and to provide recreational opportunities for the general public. The bulk of the Company’s operations are
located at the individual reserves namely: Albert Falls, Bon Accorde, Hazelmere, Nagle, Shongweni, Inanda and
Spring Grove.

2.

SHAREHOLDER
Umgeni Water subscribes to 100% of the shareholding

3.

DIRECTORS
The directors in office at the year-end and at the date of this report are:
Name

Designation

Appointment

SW Gillham

Non-executive

Appointed March 2012

T Hlongwa

Non-executive  

Appointed April 2014

C Gamede

Non-executive

Appointed April 2014

S.Shabalala

Independent Non- Executive

Appointed September 2015

M Ndlovu

Independent Non- Executive

Appointed September 2015

Dr B Mkhize

Independent Non- Executive

Appointed June 2014

SN Naguran

Prescribed Officer

Acting Managing Director (contract ended on 31 May 2017)

M Dlamini

Prescribed Officer

Managing Director (Appointed on 01 May 2017)

Mboniseni Dlamini has been appointed at Msinsi Holdings (SOC) Ltd, on 01 May 2017. There have been no other changes
to the directorate for the period under review.
4.

GOING CONCERN
The directors are of the opinion that the company will continue to operate as a going concern for the foreseeable future as
it will continue to receive support from Umgeni Water. Any issues affecting the restructuring of the holding company
(Umgeni Water) are not anticipated to affect the entity. This is supported by the letter of financial support issued to the
entity by the shareholder. The Accounting Authority of Umgeni Water has issued a going concern status in the entity’s
Annual Financial Statements for 2016/2017 (accessible on  www.umgeni.co.za  and on request) and we support their
statement in as far as it may be construed to extend to Msinsi Holdings (SOC) Ltd.

5.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
There is a pending litigation matter between Msinsi Holdings (SOC) Ltd and SWASEA Adventure and Watersports. Summons
were served to Msinsi Holdings (SOC) Ltd after year end relating to conditions which existed before year end. This matter will
be further investigated and  the outcome will be informed by the legal team.

6.

LITIGATION STATEMENT
The company becomes involved from time to time in various claims and lawsuits incidental to the ordinary course of
business. There is a pending dispute regarding an alleged agreement for the sale of 3 buffalo between Msinsi Holdings (SOC)
Ltd and Safrican (Pty) Ltd (a company engaged to capture and transfer buffalo from Shongweni Dam to Albert Falls Dam).
The costs of settling the matter cannot be estimated. Refer to note 34.
Save as recorded above, the directors are not aware of any legal or arbitration proceedings, including proceedings that are
pending or threatened that may have a material effect on the financial position of the company.

7.

AUDITORS
SM XULU Inc. will continue in office as auditors for the company for 2018.

8.

LIQUIDITY AND SOLVENCY
The directors have performed the required liquidity and solvency tests required by the Companies Act 71 of 2008.
The Annual Financial Statements set out on pages 86 to 116, which have been prepared on the going concern basis,  were
approved by Umgeni Water  on 20 September 2017. Msinsi Holdings (SOC) Ltd will continue to receive finanical support
from Umgeni Water for the work it conducts on its behalf and this ensures the Going Concern Status of Msinsi Holdings.
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Audit Committee Report
For the year ended 30 June 2017
The Committee has adopted appropriate formal terms of
reference as its charter that adequately addresses the functions
of an Audit Committee as set out in the Public Finance
Management Act No 1 of 1999, as amended (the PFMA) and
the Companies Act No 71 of 2008, as amended (the Companies
Act).  The Committee has regulated its affairs in compliance
with this charter, and has discharged all of its responsibilities
contained therein.
In the conduct of its duties, the Committee has performed the
following activities:

•

the activities of internal audit, including its annual work
programme, co-ordination with the external auditor, the
internal audit findings and the management responses
and implementation of recommendations to enhance
internal controls; and

•

the independence and objectivity of the external auditor.

The Committee is of the opinion, based on the information
and explanations given by management and internal audit
and discussions with the independent external auditors on the
result of their audits, that:
•

the internal accounting controls are adequate to ensure
that the financial records may be relied upon for
preparing the financial statements, and accountability
for assets and liabilities is maintained;

Determined the fees to be paid to the auditor and the
auditor’s terms of engagement;

•

the expertise, resources and experience of the finance
function are adequate;

•

Ensured that the appointment of the auditor complies
with the Companies Act and any other legislation
relating to the appointment of auditors;

•

the system and process of risk management and
compliance processes are adequate;

•

Determined the nature and extent of any non-audit
services which the auditor may provide to Msinsi;

•

the effectiveness of the assurance and internal audit
is adequate;

•

Pre-approved any proposed contract with the auditor
for the provision of non-audit services to Msinsi;

•

there were no hindrances preventing the Committee
from conducting its business in accordance with the
approved Internal Audit Charter; and

•

Considered the independence and objectivity of the
external auditors and ensured that the scope of their
additional services provided was not such that they
could be seen to have impaired their independence.

•

is satisfied with the independence and objectivity of the
Internal and External auditors.

•

Nominated for appointment a registered auditor for
Msinsi who, in the opinion of the Committee, is
independent of the company;

•

In the conduct of its duties, the Committee has, inter alia,
reviewed the following:
•

Internal control, risk management and compliance with
legal and regulatory provisions:

•

the effectiveness of the internal control systems;

•

the risk areas of the entity’s operations covered in the
scope of internal and external audits;

•

the effectiveness of the system of, and process of, risk
management including the following specific risks:

-

financial reporting;

-

internal financial controls;

-

fraud risks relating to financial reporting; and

-

information technology risks relating to financial
reporting;

•

the effectiveness of the entity’s compliance with legal
and regulatory provisions;

•

the adequacy, reliability and accuracy of financial
information provided by management and other users
of such information; and

•

the experience, expertise and resources of the
finance function.

•

Internal and external audit:

•

Internal Audit and External Audit Reports;

•

the effectiveness of internal audit;
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Nothing significant has come to the attention of the Committee
to indicate that any material breakdown in the functioning of
these controls, procedures and systems has occurred during
the year under review.  The Committee is satisfied that the
financial statements are based on appropriate accounting
policies, supported by reasonable and prudent judgments and
estimates.
The Committee has evaluated the Annual Financial Statements
of Msinsi Holdings SOC Ltd and accompanying notes for the
year ended 30 June 2017 and, based on the information
provided to the Committee, considers that they comply, in
all material respects, with the requirements of the PFMA,
the Companies Act and International Financial Reporting
Standards. The Committee concurs with the Board of Directors’
conclusion that the adoption of the going concern premise
in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.
Any issues affecting the restructuring of the holding company
(‘Umgeni Water’) are not anticipated to affect the entity.
This is supported by a letter of financial support issued to
the entity by the shareholder. The Board of Umgeni Water has
issued a going concern status in the entity’s annual financial
statements for 2016/2017 (accessible on www.umgeni.co.za
and on request) and we support their statement in as far
as it may be construed to extend to Msinsi. The Committee
has therefore recommended the adoption of the financial
statements by the Board of Directors.

Audit Committee Chairman
14 September 2017
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Independent Auditors Report
To the shareholder of Msinsi Holdings SOC
Limited
Report on the audit of the financial statements
Opinion
We have audited the annual financial statements of Msinsi
Holdings SOC Limited set out on pages 86 to 116, which
comprise the statement of financial position as at 30 June,
2017, and the statement of financial performance, statement
of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the annual financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.
In our opinion, the annual financial statements present
fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Msinsi
Holdings SOC Limited as at 30 June, 2017, and its financial
performance and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standard
and the requirements of the Public Finance Management
Act of South Africa, 1999, as amended (Act No. 1 of 1999)
(PFMA) and the Companies Act of South Africa 71 of 2008
(Companies Act).
Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International
Standards on Auditing. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the annual financial
statements section of our report. We are independent of the
company in accordance with the Independent Regulatory
Board for Auditors Code of Professional Conduct for
Registered Auditors (IRBA Code) and other independence
requirements applicable to performing audits of annual
financial statements in South Africa. We have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IRBA
Code and in accordance with other ethical requirements
applicable to performing audits in South Africa. The IRBA
Code is consistent with the International Ethics Standards
Board for Accountants Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (Parts A and B). We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
Emphasis of Matters
We draw attention to the matter below. Our opinion is not
modified in respect of this matter.
As disclosed in note 39 to the financial statements, the
corresponding figures for 30 June 2016 have been restated
as a result of an error discovered during 2017 in the financial
statements of the company at, and for the year ended,
30 June 2016.
Additional Matters
We draw attention to the matter below. Our opinion is not
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modified in respect of this matter.
The supplementary information set out on pages 117 to
118 does not form part of the financial statements and is
presented as additional information. We have not audited this
information and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion
thereon.
Responsibilities of the directors for the Annual Financial
Statements
The directors are responsible for the preparation and
fair presentation of the annual financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standard
and the requirements of the Companies Act, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of annual financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.
In preparing the annual financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the Annual
Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the annual financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
International Standards on Auditing will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these annual financial statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with International
Standards on Auditing, we exercise professional judgement
and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:
•

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the annual financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.
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•

•

•

•

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the company’s internal control.
Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.
Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the annual financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date
of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the company to cease to continue
as a going concern.
Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the annual financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the annual financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

report of the company for the year ended 30 June 2017:
Objectives
		

Pages in the annual
performance report

Objective 1 - Increase services
and customers

72

Objective 2 - Increase customer
and stakeholder value

73 - 76

Objective 4 - Improve all
key systems

81 - 84

Objective 6 - Improve skills
and competency

85

We performed procedures to determine whether the reported
performance information was properly presented and whether
performance was consistent with the approved performance
planning documents. We performed further procedures to
determine whether the indicators and related targets were
measurable and relevant, and assessed the reliability of the
reported performance information to determine whether it
was valid, accurate and complete.
We did not identify any material findings on the usefulness
and reliability of the reported performance information for the
following objectives:
•

Increase services and customers

•

Increase customer and stakeholder value

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

•

Improve all key systems

•

Improve skills and competency

Report on the audit of the annual performance report

and reliability of the reported performance information for the

In accordance with the Public Audit Act of South Africa, 2004
(Act No. 25 of 2004) (PAA) and the general notice issued
in terms thereof we have a responsibility to report material
findings on the reported performance information against
predetermined objectives for selected objectives presented
in the annual performance report. We performed procedures
to identify findings but not to gather evidence to express
assurance.
Our procedures address the reported performance information
which must be based on the approved performance planning
documents of the company. We have not evaluated the
completeness and appropriateness of the performance
indicators/measures established and included in the planning
documents. Our procedures also did not extend to any
disclosures or assertions relating to planned performance
strategies and information relating to future periods that may
be included as part of the reported performance information.
Accordingly our findings do not extend to these matters.
We evaluated the usefulness and reliability of the reported
performance information in accordance with the criteria
developed from the Performance management and reporting
framework, as defined in the general notice, for the following
selected objectives presented in the annual performance
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Additional Matters
Although we identified no material findings on the usefulness
selected objectives, we draw attention to the following matter:
Achievement of planned targets
Refer to the annual performance report on pages 67 to 85 for
information on the achievement of the planned targets for
the year.
Report on the audit of compliance with legislation
In accordance with the PAA and the general notice issued
in terms thereof we have a responsibility to report material
findings on the compliance of the company with specific
matters in key legislation. We performed procedures to
identify findings but not to gather evidence to express
assurance.
The material findings in respect of the compliance criteria for
the applicable subject matters are as follows:
Annual financial statements
Material misstatements of non-current assets identified by the
auditors in the submitted financial statements were corrected,
resulting in the financial statements receiving an unqualified
audit opinion.
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Expenditure management

Internal control deficiencies

Effective steps were not taken to prevent irregular expenditure
amounting to R1 588 334 as disclosed in note 38 to the annual
financial statements, as required by section 51(1)(b)(ii) of the
PFMA.

Leadership

Effective steps were not taken to prevent fruitless and wasteful
expenditure amounting to R6 437, as disclosed in note 37 to
the annual financial statements, in contravention of section
51(1)(b)(ii) of the PFMA.
Strategic planning and performance management
A corporate plan was not submitted in the prescribed format
to the Provincial treasury as required by section 52(b) of the
PFMA.
Procurement and contract management
Goods, works or service were not procured through a
procurement process which is fair, equitable, transparent and
competitive, as required by section 51(1)(a)(iii) of the PFMA.
We were unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit
evidence that the preferential point system was applied in
all procurement of goods and services above R30 000, as
required by section 2(a) of the Preferential Procurement Policy
Framework Act and treasury regulation 16A6.3(b).

Management did not exercise oversight responsibility regarding
financial reporting and compliance as well as related internal
controls as material misstatements and non-compliance to
legislation was identified.
Financial and performance management
Management did not review and monitor compliance with
applicable laws and regulations as material misstatements were
identified by the auditors which were subsequently corrected,
resulting in the financial statements receiving an unqualified
audit opinion.
Management’s internal controls and processes over the
preparation and presentation of financial statements were
not able to ensure that the financials were free from material
misstatements.
SM Xulu Inc.
Chartered Accountants (S.A.)
Registered Auditors

Other information
The directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the
annual report which includes the director’s report, the audit
committee’s report and the company secretary’s certificate as
required by the Companies Act. The other information does not
include the separate financial statements, the auditor’s report
thereon and those selected objectives presented in the annual
performance report that have been specifically reported on in
the auditor’s report.

Per: SM Xulu
Chartered Accountant (S.A.)
Registered Auditor
Director

14 September 2017

Our opinion on the financial statements and findings on
the reported performance information and compliance with
legislation do not cover the other information and we do not
express an audit opinion or any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.
In connection with our audit, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the annual financial
statements and the selected objectives presented in the annual
performance report, or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, on the other information obtained
prior to the date of this auditor’s report, we conclude that there
is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact.
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Statement of Financial Position
Figures in Rand

Note(s)

2017

2016 Restated

ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
Property, plant and equipment

11

21 218 942

16 805 066

Biological assets

13

4 244 242

4 910 689

Intangible Assets

12

226 660

197 575

25 689 844

21 913 330

6 965 348

7 433 971

Current Assets
Loans to group companies

14

Trade and other receivables

17

2 335 868

1 557 222

Cash and cash equivalents

18

3 380 350

19 601 908

		
12 681 566
28 593 101
Total Assets		
38 371 410
50 506 431
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Share capital

19

100

100

Equity contribution from parent		

2 034 887

11 798 341

Retained income		

12 470 780

15 561 570

		
14 505 767
27 360 011
LIABILITIES
Non-Current Liabilities
Corporate Social Investment

23

1 011 355

1 058 168

Loan Account - Umgeni Water

15

11 015 602

12 296 490

12 026 957

13 354 658

		
Current Liabilities
Trade and other payables

20

6 557 608

3 903 196

Provisions

21

3 255 310

3 413 781

Loan Account - Umgeni Water

16

2 025 768

2 474 785

		
11 838 686
9 791 762
Total Liabilities		

23 865 643

23 146 421

Total Equity and Liabilities		

38 371 410

50 506 431
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Statement of Comprehensive Income
Figures in Rand

Note(s)

2017

2016 Restated

Revenue

3

49 915 460

47 160 904

Other Income

4

2 470 997

1 797 969

Fair Value Adjustment

5

(787 580)

691 425

Operating Expenses		

(64 219 606)

(56 300 673)

Operating Loss

6

(12 620 729)

(6 650 375)

Finance Income

8

741 880

1 676 392

Finance Cost

9

(975 396)

(899 509)

Total comprehensive loss for the year		

(12 854 245)

(5 873 492)

Statement of Changes in Equity
Figures in Rand
Note(s)
Share capital
Equity
			contribution
			
from parent
Balance at 01 July 2015		

100

Total Comprehensive Loss for the period 		
as previously reported			
Correction of Error
Release of Equity Contribution
from the parent

Total equity

12 757 483

33 233 503

(5 627 755)
-		

(5 627 755)

39		

-

(245 737)

(245 737)

-		

(8 677 579)

8 677 579

-

11 798 341

15 561 570

27 360 011

Restated balance at 30 June 2016		

100

Restated balance at 30 June 2016		

100

-

15 561 567

15 561 667

Total Comprehensive Loss for the period		

-

-

(12 854 245)

(12 854 245)

Total comprehensive Loss for the year		

-

-

(12 854 245)

(12 854 245)

Release of Equity Contribution from the parent

-

(9 763 454)

9 763 454

-

Release of Equity Contribution from the parent

-

(9 763 454)

9 763 454

-

100

2 034 887

12 470 779

14 505 767

Balance at 30 June 2017		
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20 475 920

Retained income
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Statement of Cash Flows
Figures in Rand

Note(s)

2017

2016 Restated

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash generated from operations

36

(6 883 802)

(10 282 660)

Finance income		

741 880

1 676 392

Finance Cost		

(975 396)

(899 509)

Net cash from operating activities		

(6 650 286)

(9 505 777)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property, plant and equipment

11

(7 724 281)

(14 882 484)

Purchase of intangible assets

12

(323 445)

(59 726)

Acquisition of biological assets

13

-

(509 862)

Proceeds from sale of game

13

206 351

597 550

(7 841 375)

(14 854 522)

Movement in loan account Umgeni Water		

(1 729 895)

14 771 275

Total cash movement for the period		

(16 221 552)

(9 589 024)

Cash at the beginning of the period		

19 601 908

29 190 932

3 380 350

19 601 908

Net cash from investing activities		
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Total cash at end of the period
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1. Principal Accounting Policies

Impairment of Financial Instruments

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of the Annual Financial Statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

At the end of each reporting period, financial assets measured
at cost or amortised cost are reviewed for objective evidence
of impairment. If so, an impairment loss is recognised in profit
or loss for the period. If the objective evidence reverses in
a subsequent period, impairment losses are reversed in the
profit or loss of subsequent periods.

1.1 Basis of Presentation
The Annual Financial Statements have been prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS), the Public Finance Management Act 1 of 1999 (PFMA),
and the Companies Act 71 of 2008. The Annual Financial
Statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention and is presented in South African rand.
1.2 Revenue
Revenue comprises of gate entry fees charged at the
reserves gates, accommodation, rental and environmental
management fees charged to Umgeni Water in order to meet
the environmental management expenditure.
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents the amounts receivable
for goods and services provided in the normal course of
business, net of trade discounts and sales related taxes.
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when goods are
delivered and title has passed.

Financial assets are de-recognised when the contractual
rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset have
expired or have been transferred and the company has
transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.
Financial liabilities are de-recognised when, and only when,
they are extinguished, that is, when the obligation specified in
the contract is either discharged, cancelled or expired.
Offsetting Financial Instruments
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the statement of financial position when there is
a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
Trade and Other Receivables

Revenue from interest income is accrued on a time basis, with
reference to the principal outstanding and at the applicable
effective interest rate.

Trade receivables are recognised and carried at the invoice
amount less an allowance for any unallocated amounts.
Provision is made when there is an objective evidence that the
company will not be able to collect the debts. Bad debts are
written off when identified.

1.3 Financial instruments

Trade and Other Payables

Financial instruments consist mainly of borrowings, finance
lease liabilities, listed and unlisted investments, cash and cash
equivalents, trade and other receivables and trade and other
payables.

Trade payables are initially measured at fair value, and are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest rate method.

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a
financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or a
residual interest of another entity.
Financial instruments consist mainly of borrowings, finance
lease liabilities, listed and unlisted investments, cash and cash
equivalents, trade and other receivables and trade and other
payables.
Initial Recognition and Measurement
Financial instruments are recognised initially when the
company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments.
The company determines the classification of its financial
assets at initial recognition and classifies financial
instruments, or their component parts, on initial recognition
as a financial asset, a financial liability or an equity instrument
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangement.
Financial instruments are recognised initially at fair value plus,
for instruments not at fair value through profit or loss, any
directly attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent Measurement
Financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss are
subsequently measured at fair value, with gains and losses
arising from changes in fair value being included in profit or
loss for the period. Loans and receivables are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method, less accumulated impairment losses. Financial
liabilities at amortised cost are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.
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De-recognition of Financial Instruments

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
demand deposits, and other short-term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible to a known amount
of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value. These are initially and subsequently recorded at fair
value.
Loans to (from) Holding Company
These loans are recognised initially at fair value plus direct
transaction costs. A loan to the holding company is classified
as a loan and receivable. A loan from the holding company
is classified as a loan payable and is measured at amortised
cost.
1.4 Operating Leases
The company is the Lessee:
Leases of property, plant and equipment where the company  
has substantially transferred all the risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as finance leases. Assets held under
finance lease agreements are capitalised. Such assets are
depreciated in terms of the lease term relating to the relevant
lease agreement, provided that such term of lease is shorter
than the assets’ useful lives. Finance leases are capitalised
at the inception of the lease at the lower of the fair value of
the leased property and the present value of the minimum
future lease payments. Lease finance charges are allocated
to accounting periods over the duration of the leases by the
effective rate method, which reflects the extent and cost of
the lease finance utilised in each accounting period. All other
leases are treated as operating leases and the relevant rental
expenses are recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.
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The Company is the Lessor:
Assets held for the operating leases are presented in the
Statement of Financial Position according to the nature of
the asset. Rental income is recognised over the lease term
on a straight-line basis, unless another systematic basis is
more representative of the time pattern in which use benefit is
derived from the leased asset.
1.5 Provisions and Contingencies
Provisions are reviewed at reporting date and the amount of a
provision is the present value of the expenditure expected to
be required to settle the obligation:
Provisions are recognised when:
- the company has a present obligation (legal or constructive)
as a result of a past event;
- it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and;
- reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.
Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are not
recognised. Contingencies are disclosed in the notes.
1.6 Property, plant and equipment
Initial Recognition and Measurement
Property, plant and equipment are tangible non-current assets
(including infra-structure assets) that are held for use in the
production or supply of goods and service, rental to others,
or for administrative purposes, and are expected to be used
during more than one period.

depreciation method used reflects the pattern in which the
asset’s future economic benefits or service potential are
expected to be consumed by the company.
Plant and equipment of less than R 2 000 is written off on
acquisition.
The useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment
have been assessed as follows:
Item

Depreciation
method

Average
useful life

Vehicles
Boats
Plant Equipment
and Tools
Radios
Cruise Boat
Garden Equipment
Accommodation
Facilities
Cleaning and Catering
Security
Office Equipment
Displays / Exhibitions
Buildings

Straight line
Straight line

3 to 5 years
4 to 5 years

Straight line
Straight line
Straight line
Straight line

2 to 6 years
5 years
4 years
4 to 5 years

Straight line
Straight line
Straight line
Straight line
Straight line
Straight line

2 to 10 years
5 to 6 years
2 to 10 years
2 to 6 years
2 to 3 years
40 years

The residual value, the useful life and depreciation method of
each asset are reviewed at the end of each reporting date. If
the expectations differ from previous estimates, the change is
accounted for as a change in accounting estimate.
Derecognition

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is
recognised as an asset when:

Property, plant and equipment are derecognised when the
asset is disposed of or when there are no further economic
benefits or service potential expected from the use of the
asset.

- it is probable that future economic benefits or service
potential associated with the item will flow to the company;
and

The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of
property, plant and equipment is included in surplus or deficit
when the item is derecognised.

- the item can be measured reliably

Gains and losses are calculated as the difference between the
carrying value of assets (cost less accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses) and the disposal
proceeds is included in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income as a gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is the
purchase price and other costs attributable to bring the asset
to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of
operating in the manner intended.
Cost includes costs incurred initially to acquire or construct
an item of property, plant and equipment and costs incurred
subsequently to add to, replace part of, or service it. If a
replacement cost is recognised in the carrying amount of an
item of property, plant and equipment, the carrying amount of
the replaced part is derecognised.
The initial estimate of the cost of dismantling and removing
the item and restoring the site on which it is located is also
included in the cost of property, plant and equipment, where
the entity is obligated to incur such expenditure, and where
the obligation arises as a result of acquiring the asset.
Subsequent Measurement
Property, plant and equipment is carried at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.
Substantial improvements to property, plant and equipment
are capitalised whilst maintenance and repairs are written off
as they occur.
Depreciation
Depreciation on assets other than land is provided on a
straight line basis so as to write-off the cost of each asset
to its residual value over its expected useful life. The
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1.7 Intangible Assets
Initial Recognition
An intangible asset is an identifiable non-monetary asset
without physical substance. Intangible assets are initially
recognised at cost.
The useful life of intangible assets has been assessed as
follows:
Item
Computer software

Average Useful life
2 years

Subsequent Measurement
Intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated
amortisation and any impairment losses. Intangible assets,
including intangible assets not yet available for use, are
assessed annually for impairment indicators. When items of
intangible assets have been impaired, the carrying value is
adjusted by the impairment loss, which is recognised as an
expense in the period that the impairment is identified.  The
impairment loss is the difference between the carrying amount
and the recoverable amount.
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The estimated useful life, residual values and amortisation
method are reviewed annually at the end of the financial year.
Any adjustment arising from the annual review is applied
prospectively as a change in accounting estimate in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Irregular expenditure is accounted for as an expense in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income in the period it occurred
and where recovered, it is subsequently accounted for as
revenue in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Derecognition

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure is expenditure which was
made in vain and would have been avoided had reasonable
care been exercised.

Intangible assets are derecognised:
- on disposal; or
- when no future economic benefits or service potential are
expected from its use or disposal
1.8 Inventories
Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.
The cost of inventories comprises of all costs of purchase,
costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition and is
determined using the first-in, first-out method.
1.9 Biological assets
Biological assets are measured at initial recognition and at
each reporting date at their fair values less estimated point
of sale costs. The fair value of livestock is determined by
reference to prevailing market prices of similar age, genes,
and genetic merit after considering its highest and best use.
All changes in fair values are recognised and in the Statement
of Comprehensive Income in the period in which they arise.
1.10 Employee Benefits
The cost of short-term employee benefits, (those payable
within 12 months after the service is rendered, such as paid
vacation leave and bonuses) are recognised in the period in
which the service is rendered, are not discounted and are
based on current wage and salary rates.
1.11 Retirement Benefits
The company contributes to a defined contribution plan for
the provident fund. These contributions are recognised as an
expense when employees have rendered services entitling
them to contributions.
1.12 Comparatives Figures
When the presentation or classification of items in the Annual
Financial Statements is amended, prior period comparative
amounts are restated. The nature and reason for the
classification is disclosed. Where accounting errors have
been identified in the current year, the correction is made
retrospectively as far as is practicable, and the prior year
comparatives are restated accordingly.
1.13 PFMA Disclosure
Irregular Expenditure
Irregular expenditure means, expenditure, other than
unauthorised expenditure, incurred in contravention of or not
in accordance with a requirement of any applicable legislation,
including:
- The PFMA

100
100

Fruitless and Wasteful Expenditure

All expenditure relating to fruitless and wasteful expenditure is
recognised as an expense in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income in the year that the expenditure was incurred. The
expenditure is classified in accordance with the nature of the
expense and where recovered, it is subsequently accounted
for as Statement of Comprehensive Income.
1.14 Capital Commitments
Capital commitments are items classified as commitments
where the entity commits itself to future transactions that will
normally result in the outflow of resources.
Capital commitments are not recognised in the Statement
of Financial Position as a liability but are included in the
disclosure notes in the following cases:
- Approved and contracted commitments, where the
expenditure has been approved and the contract has been
awarded at the reporting date
- Approved but not yet contracted commitments, where the
expenditure has been approved and the contract has not yet
being awarded or is awaiting finalisation at the reporting date.
- Contracts that are entered into before the reporting date,
but goods and service have not yet been received, are
disclosed in the disclosure note to the financial statements.
1.15 Value Added Tax (VAT)
The entity is registered with the South African Revenue
Services for VAT on the invoice basis in accordance with
Section 15(2)(a) of the Value Added Tax Act, No. 81 of 1991.
1.16 Income Tax
The entity is exempted from tax in terms of s10 (1) (cA) (ii) of
the Income Tax Act.
1.17 Related Parties
A related party is a person or entity that is related to the entity
that is preparing its financial statements ( referred to as the
reporting entity).
A person or a close member of that person’s family is related
to a reporting entity if that person:
- has control or joint control of the reporting entity;
- as significant influence over the reporting entity; or
- is a member of the key management personnel of the
reporting entity or of a parent of the reporting entity.
An entity is related to a reporting entity if any of the following
conditions applies:
- The entity and the reporting entity are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow
subsidiary is related to the others).

- The State Tender Board Act, 1968 act no. 86 of 1968, or any
regulations made in terms of that Act, or

- One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity
(or an associate or joint venture of a member of a group of
which the other entity is a member).

- Any provisional legislation providing for procurement
procedures in that provincial government

- Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.
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- One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity.

The company expects to adopt the standard for the first time
in the 2019 Annual Financial Statements.

- The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit
of employees of either the reporting entity or an entity related
to the reporting entity. If the reporting entity is itself such
a plan, the sponsoring employers are also related to the
reporting entity.

The amendment is not considered to have any material impact
on the company’s Annual Financial Statements.

-The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified above.

This IFRS is part of the IASB’s project to replace IAS 39
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement;
addresses classification and measurement of financial assets
and replaces the multiple classification and measurement
models in IAS 39 with a single model that has only three
classification categories: amortised cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income and fair value through profit or
loss; the classification and measurement of financial liabilities
are the same as per IAS 39 barring two aspects; adds the
requirements related to the classification and measurement of
financial liabilities, and derecognition of financial assets and
liabilities to the version issued in November 2009; and includes
those paragraphs of IAS 39 dealing with how to measure fair
value and accounting for derivatives embedded in a contract
that contains a host that is not a financial asset, as well as
the requirements of IFRIC 9 Reassessment of Embedded
Derivatives.

- A person identified above has significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity).
-The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,
provides key management personnel services to the reporting
entity or to the parent of the reporting entity.
A related party transaction is a transfer of resources, services
or obligations between a reporting entity and a related party,
regardless of whether a price is charged.
Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence or be influenced
by that person in their dealings with the entity and include:
- that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;
- children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner; and
- dependants of that person or that person’s spouse or
domestic partner.
Significant related party relationships and transactions are
disclosed in the Annual Financial Statements as required by
IFRS.
1.18 Use of Estimates
The preparation of the Annual Financial Statements in
conformity with IFRS standards requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to
exercise their judgement in complying with policies. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the Annual
Financial Statements are disclosed in the relevant sections of
the Annual Financial Statements. Although these estimates
are based on management’s best knowledge of current events
and actions they may undertake in the future, actual results
ultimately may differ from those estimates.
1.19 Key Sources of Uncertainty
There are no assumptions concerning the future, and other
sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that
have significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year.
2. NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
New standards amendments and interpretations not yet
effective:
2.1. IFRS 2 (Amendment): Share-based payments (effective
for financial periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018)
The amendments cover three accounting areas:

2.2. IFRS 9 (New standard): Financial instruments (effective
for financial periods beginning on or after 1January 2018)

The company expects to adopt the standard for the first time
in the 2019 Annual Financial Statements.
The amendment is not considered to have any material impact
on the company’s Annual Financial Statements.
2.3. IFRS 15 (New standard): Revenue from contracts with
customers (effective for financial periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2018)
Provides a framework that replaces existing revenue
recognition guidance in IFRS. The standard contains a single
model that applies to contracts with customers and two
approaches to recognising revenue: at a point in time or
over time; and the model features a contract based five-step
analysis of transactions to determine whether, how much and
when revenue is recognised.
The company expects to adopt the standard for the first time
in the 2019 Annual Financial Statements. Management is in
the process of reviewing the requirements of the standard to
assess the impact of the standard on the company’s Annual
Financial Statements.
2.4. IFRS 16 (New standard): Leases (effective for financial
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019)
This IFRS sets out the principles for the recognition,
measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases for
both parties to a contract, i.e. the customer (‘lessee’) and
the supplier (‘lessor’); IFRS16 replaces the previous leases
Standard, IAS 17 Leases, and related Interpretations; and IFRS
16 has one model for lessees which will result in almost all
leases being included on the Statement of Financial Position.
The company expects to adopt the standard for the first time
in the 2020 Annual Financial Statements.
The amendment is not considered to have any material impact
on the company’s Annual Financial Statements.

- Measurement of cash-settled share-based payments;
- Classification of share-based payments settled net of tax
withholdings; and
- Accounting for a modification of a share-based payment from
cash-settled to equity-settled.
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Figures in Rand

2017

2016

Chalets/Lodges - Eco Tourism

2 541 788

2 897 144

Campsite - Eco Tourism

1 718 167

2 325 835

Eco Tourism - Other

1 585 261

1 689 732

Boat Registration - Eco Tourism

331 210

394 085

Tented Accommodation - Eco Tourism

403 787

610 868

3. REVENUE
Revenue is made up of the following:

Hunting and Game Sales

54 552

25 140

212 904

166 013

Environmental Management Fees

37 000 000

33 127 000

Wild Card Revenue - Eco Tourism

3 203 080

2 822 255

Conference - Eco Tourism

Special Events Area - Eco Tourism
Gate Revenue - Eco Tourism

489 279

620 992

2 375 432

2 481 840

49 915 460

47 160 904

4. OTHER OPERATING INCOME
Other operating income is made of the following:
Other rental income
Sundry Income

745 917

656 639

1 725 080

1 141 330

2 470 997

1 797 969

(787 580)

691 425

5. FAIR VALUE ADJUSTMENTS
Loss/Gain on Biological assets
6. OPERATING LOSS
Operating loss before finance charges for the period is stated after charging (crediting) the following, amongst others:
Operating lease charges
Lease of land Albert Falls

217 870

198 070

Audit Fees - External Auditors

400 000

390 000

Audit Fees - Internal Auditors

444 333

522 400

844 333

912 400

Audit Fees

Depreciation and Amortisation
Amortisation of intangible assets

294 360

189 705

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

3 310 407

2 222 218

Total Depreciation and Amortisation

3 604 767

2 411 923

33 986 501

31 202 872

116

117

Employee Costs
Salaries, Wages, Bonuses and Other Benefits
Number of Employees
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Figures in Rand

2017

2016

1 047 996
294 360
24 488
844 333
368 060
295 940
28 174
95 873
15 293
80 370
3 310 407
940 227
6 185
5 344
121 497
1 944 775
33 986 501
25 366
1 068 675
908 272
1 280 644
46 492
2 523
287 793
86 256
392 498
217 870
150 948
125 014
50 350
710
338 607
290 106
20 187
124 041
961
9 148 547
514 891
18 163
1 334 045
293 199
61 323
169 842
251 479
560 492
414 621
376 026
660 214
405 485

756 519
189 705
11 703
912 400
360 359
112 647
52 680
116 603
105 990
2 222 218
184
1 250
126 159
2 015 356
31 202 872
148 440
1 004 991
91 610
1 740 952
83 344
2 421
280 441
47 223
435 927
198 070
148 486
877 694
110 835
425 011
525
274 665
233 988
100 447
133 479
6 654 722
195 105
972 140
244 782
39 952
418 323
151 822
510 388
67 713
123 331
272 482
157 185

7. OTHER OPERATING EXPENDITURE
Other operating expenses are made up of the following:
Advertising and promotions
Amortisation
Animal expenses
Audit fees
Bank charges:
Directors Emoluments
Directors Expense
Conferences expenses
Conference - local
Consulting fees
Depreciation
Loss of Rhino Poached
Environmental Education
Displays/exhibitions
Educational Assistance
Electricity/Water and Rates
Salaries & Wages
Events
Fuel
Game Count costs
Alien Plant
Gas Supplies
Hunting
Insurance
Kiosk Purchases
Laundry and Cleaning
Lease Rentals on Operating Lease
Lease of Office Equipment
Legal costs
Licenses
Loss on sale of Game
Postage
Printing and Stationery
Protective Clothing and Uniforms
Public Relations
Body Corporate Levies
Rent paid
Repairs and Maintenance
Staff Recruitment
Security Levy (PSIRA)
Private Security
Skills Development Levy
Consumables
Staff welfare
Subscriptions and Membership
Telephone and Fax
Staff Training & Development
Travel and Accommodation- local
Visitor facilities
WCA Contributions
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Figures in Rand

2017

2016

7. OTHER OPERATING EXPENDITURE (continued)
Wild Card expenses

808 399

929 108

Sundry expenses

375 743

1 038 426

64 219 606

56 300 673

741 880

1 676 392

8. FINANCE INCOME
Finance Income - Bank
9. FINANCE COST
Finance Cost - Bank
Finance Cost - Umgeni Water

43 925

25 992

925 034

873 517

6 437

-

975 396

899 509

Interest Paid - Other
Total finance cost
10. TAXATION
The entity is exempt from tax in terms of s10(1)(cA)(ii) of the Income Tax Act.
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Figures in Rand

11. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

2017

2016

2017

2016

Cost
Accumulated Carrying value
Cost Accumulated
		 depreciation			depreciation
Accommodation Facilities
6 461 377
(3 049 716)
3 411 661
4 614 609
(2 265 398)
Boats
1 955 923
(655 531)
1 300 392
736 405
(459 506)
Buildings
11 500 000
(516 542)
10 983 458
11 500 000
(234 792)
Cleaning and Catering
798 948
(640 241)
158 707
798 947
(558 773)
Displays
109 464
(103 757)
5 707
109 464
(100 721)
Fencing and Signage
1 132 707
(472 221)
660 486
431 489
(187 772)
Garden Equipment
1 217 225
(542 081)
675 144
545 743
(447 517)
Motor Vehicles
6 397 247
(4 980 308)
1 416 939
5 894 415
(4 530 238)
Office Equipment
2 520 905
(1 844 764)
676 141
1 869 633
(1 601 233)
Plant and Machinery
3 066 820
(1 909 237)
1 157 583
1 486 780
(1 233 481)
Security
728 299
(585 082)
143 217
728 299
(398 739)
Visitor Facilities
723 668
(94 161)
629 507
172 518
(65 065)
Total
36 612 583
(15 393 641)
21 218 942
28 888 302 (12 083 235)

Carrying
value
2 349 211
276 899
11 265 208
240 174
8 743
243 717
98 226
1 364 177
268 400
253 299
329 560
107 453
16 805 067

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - 30 June 2017

Displays
Buildings
Accommodation Facilities
Plant and Machinery
Fencing and Signage
Motor Vehicles
Office Equipment
Security
Visitor Facilities
Cleaning and Catering
Boats
Garden Equipment

Opening
balance
8 743
11 265 208
2 349 211
253 299
243 717
1 364 177
268 400
329 560
107 453
240 174
276 899
98 226
16 805 067

Additions

Depreciation

Total

1 846 770
1 580 040
701 218
502 832
651 272
551 150
1 219 517
671 482
7 724 281

(3 036)
(281 750)
(784 319)
(675 757)
(284 449)
(450 070)
(243 531)
(186 343)
(29 096)
(81 468)
(196 025)
(94 563)
(3 310 407)

5 707
10 983 458
3 411 661
1 157 583
660 486
1 416 939
676 141
143 217
629 507
158 707
1 300 392
675 144
21 218 942

Additions

Depreciation

Total

9 110
11 500 000
1 223 930
64 117
323 462
1 140 583
127 229
369 277
79 084
20 692
25 000
14 882 484

(22 285)
(234 792)
(732 036)
(393 474)
(85 750)
(114 377)
(261 123)
(54 909)
(17 942)
(89 658)
(133 919)
(81 962)
(2 222 218)

8 743
11 265 208
2 349 211
253 299
243 717
1 364 177
268 400
329 560
107 453
240 174
276 899
98 226
16 805 067

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - 2016 - Restated

Displays
Buildings
Accommodation Facilities
Plant and Machinery
Fencing and Signage
Motor Vehicles
Office Equipment
Security
Visitors Facilities
Cleaning and Catering
Boats
Garden Equipment
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Opening
balance
21 919
1 857 318
582 657
6 005
337 971
402 294
15 192
46 312
309 140
410 818
155 189
4 144 815
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11. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)
Boat - Inanda Dam
A cruise boat has been purchased for Inanda Dam, however the boat is not operational due to the SAMSA certification not being
granted. The boat is recorded at cost and depreciation will only commence once the asset is available for use.
Inanda Dam - Cruise Boat						

824 560

12. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
2017

2016

Cost / Valuation Accumulated Carrying value Cost / Valuation
Accumulated Carrying value
		amortisation			 amortisation
Computer software
721 943
(495 282)
226 660
387 280
(189 705)
197 575
Reconciliation of intangible assets - 2017

Amortisation
(294 360)

Total
226 660

		
Opening balance
Additions Other changes,
					movements

Total

Computer software			

Opening balance
197 575

Additions
323 445

Reconciliation of intangible assets - 2016

Computer software			

327 554

59 726

(189 705)

197 575

13. BIOLOGICAL ASSETS
2017

2016

Cost / Valuation Accumulated Carrying value Cost / Valuation
Accumulated Carrying value
		amortisation			 amortisation
Biological assets

5 031 822

(787 550)

4 244 272

4 219 264

691 425

4 910 689

Opening
Additions
Fair Value on
Balance		
Disposals
				

Fair Value of
Game loss due
to poaching

Loss arising
from changes
in fair value

Total

(940 227)

(787 580)

4 244 242

Reconciliation of biological assets - 30 June 2017

Biological assets

4 910 689

1 518 570

(457 210)

The total is based on an estimate count of game reflected per year as follows: (2017:581) and (2016:539). The addition is based on
the physical count performed at year end. The most significant categories are the Buffalo, Rhino, Zebra, Giraffe and Wildebeest. The
fair value of game is based on the market related prices and is therefore classified as level 2 fair value in terms of IFRS 13. The fair
value of the game disposed relates to the poaching of the Rhino.
Reconciliation of biological assets - 30 June 2016
		Opening balance
Additions
Fair value of
				
Game sold
					
					
Biological assets		
4 731 963
509 862
(1 022 561)
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Gains (losses)
arising from
changes in
fair value
691 425

Total

4 910 689
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2017

2016

6 965 348
(2 025 768)
4 939 580

7 433 971
(2 474 785)
4 959 186

(11 015 602)

(12 296 490)

14. LOANS TO (FROM) GROUP COMPANIES
Current
Umgeni Water - Intercompany Account
Umgeni Water - Loan Account

15. NON - CURRENT LIABILITIES
Umgeni Water - Loan Account

The amount payable to Umgeni Water is unsecured, bears an interest at 7,35 % per annum,(2016: 7,39 %), and there is a
repayment plan in place. The amount received from Umgeni Water was used to purchase the Head Office building for
R 11,5 million. There is a long term payment plan in place commencing on 01 August 2016. There is a legal right to offset
intercompany amounts.
16. LOAN ACCOUNT UMGENI WATER
Due within one year
Due within two - ten years

2 025 768
11 015 602
13 041 370

2 474 785
12 296 490
14 771 275

21 786
147 757
11 944
190 449
648 802
1 315 130
2 335 868

122 245
147 757
16 800
77 389
90 401
1 102 630
1 557 222

17. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
Accrued Income
Deposits
Prepaid expenses
Sundry Debtors
Trade receivables
VAT

The company estimates that the carrying value of the above trade receivables approximates their fair values. All trade and other
receivables are expected to be received within one year.
The company’s exposure to credit risk is inherent in its trade receivables. Credit periods differ with credit risk profiles to the
extent that receivable amounts are estimated to be less than their associated carrying values.
The amounts receivable from SARS for VAT is offset between the input and output VAT.
18. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents consist of:
Bank balances
Cash on hand
Investments - RMB

19. SHARE CAPITAL
Authorised
1000 Ordinary shares of R 1 each
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675 551
29 600
2 675 199
3 380 350

214 305
26 600
19 361 003
19 601 908

1 000

1 000
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100

100

19. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)
Issued
100 ordinary shares of R1 each

The unissued share remain under the control of the directors until the next Annual General Meeting.
20. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Trade payables
Corporate Social Investments
Accrued Bonuses
Accrued expense

4 558 901
442 811
790 162
765 734
6 557 608

1 241 423
286 394
876 363
1 499 016
3 903 196

The company estimates that the carrying values of the above trade and other payables approximate their fair values. All trade
and other payables are expected to be repaid within 1 year.
21. PROVISIONS
Leave Pay Provisions
Leave pay provision is based on the number of days accrued by the staff on an annual basis, subject to certain conditions and
is capped at 30 days as per the leave pay policy. The liability for the leave pay is based on the total accrued leave days at
year end.
Performance Bonus
The organisation has provided for performance bonuses as a benefit to all its employees based on the performance of the
organisation which will be approved by the Board. The liability for the performance bonus is based on the basic salary for the
2017 year end.
Reconciliation of Provisions - 30 June 2017
Opening balance
Increase/
		
Decrease in
		Provisions
Leave Pay
1 911 445
1 116 366
Performance Bonus
1 502 336
2 511 082
3 413 781
3 627 448
Reconciliation of provisions - 2016

Opening balance
Increase/
		
Decrease in
		Provision
Leave Pay
1 697 470
806 057
Performance Bonus
1 502 336
Audit fees
368 625
2 066 095
2 308 393

108

Payments

Total

(1 076 082)
(2 709 838)
(3 785 920)

1 951 730
1 303 580
3 255 310

Payments

Total

(592 082)
(368 625)
(960 707)

1 911 445
1 502 336
3 413 781
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22. EQUITY CONTRIBUTION FROM PARENT
The amount of R 30 million related to once-off funding received from Umgeni Water in 2014. It was specified that this money will
be utilised for the upgrading and improvements of the Eco- Tourism business and the Infrastructure of Msinsi Holdings. During
the current period an amount of R9.7 million was utilised of which R 6.3 million relates to repairs and maintenance costs and R
3.4 million relates to additional assets that were acquired during the 2017 financial year.
23. CORPORATE SOCIAL INVESTMENT
The Corporate Social Investment is made up of two accounts with amounts spent within one year being classified under short
term. Amounts that were levied in the prior years from customers entering Msinsi Reserves and were intended for the benefit of
communities surrounding the dams which Msinsi operates, have been classified as long term. The amount is classified as a noncurrent liability as no community projects have been identified in the short-term against which these funds can be disbursed.
Corporate Social Investment is made up of:
Long Term Portion
Short Term Portion

1 011 355
442 811
1 454 166

1 058 168
286 394
1 344 562

947 356
947 356

9 250 059
1 550 000
10 800 059

24. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
- Approved and contracted commitments
- Approved and not yet contracted commitments
Total capital commitments
25. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS
Operating leases are recognised on the straight-line basis over the period of the lease as per the requirement of IFRS.
Lessee
Lease of Photocopier Machine
The company has entered into an agreement with Leaf Technology for the rental of the photocopier machine. The rental contract
is over a period of 5 years with an annual escalation rate of 10%. The office equipment rental agreement will expire on
30 June 2018.

Up to one year
Later than one year and not later than 5 years
Lease of Land - Albert Falls

166 044
166 044

150 949
166 044
316 993

The company has entered into an agreement with EPW Solomon for the rental of the Farm Otto’s Bluff No. 16112, situated in
the Administrative District of Natal, Province of Kwazulu-Natal. The rental contract is over a period of 25 years with an annual
escalation rate of 10%. The farm rental agreement will expire on 30 June 2022.
Up to one year
Later than one year and not later than 5 years
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Later than 5 years

2017

2016

1 463 160

350 890
1 681 030

Lessor
Rental of Head Office Premises
The company has entered into an agreement with Discovery Health (Pty) Ltd for the rental of Block C - Section 8 and
Section 9, 18 Old Main Road, Hillcrest. The rental contract is over a period of 3 years with an annual escalation rate of
10%. The building rental agreement will expire on 31 August 2019.
Up to one year
Later than one year and not later than 5 years

497 717
640 141
1 137 858

452 469
1 444 146
1 896 615

26. RISK MANAGEMENT
The company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including fair value and interest rate risk),
credit risk, liquidity risk and cash flow interest rate risk. The company’s overall risk management programme focuses on
the unpredictability of the financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the company’s financial
performance.
The directors provide principles for overall risk management, as well as policies covering specific areas, such as, interest rate
risk, credit risk, use of derivative financial instruments and non-derivative instruments and investment of excess liquidity.
Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that a contractual counterparty will default on its contractual obligations to the company and that the
company would suffer financial loss as a consequence of such a default. The company’s credit risk is mainly limited to their
related party transactions and sundry receivables.
Financial assets exposed to credit risk at year end were as follows:
Exposure to credit risk
Net Intercompany receivables
Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

6 965 348
2 335 868
3 380 350
12 681 566

7 433 971
1 557 222
19 601 908
28 593 101

The company manages its liquidity risk by regularly monitoring its projected cash flow requirements against its cash
resources and unutilised borrowing facilities. Surplus cash resources are only invested with large institutions with strong
credit ratings. Forecast liquidity represents the company’s expected cash inflows, principally generated from the ordinary
course of the business, less the company’s contractually determined cash flow inflows and outflows rests in the expected
ageing profiles of the underlying assets and liabilities. The maturity profile is presented below:
Liquidity Risk
Trade Creditors and other payables
Accrued Bonuses
Corporate Social Investments
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5 324 635
790 162
442 811
6 557 608

2 740 439
876 363
286 394
3 903 196
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The maturity profile is within 1 year.
Cash Flow and interest rate risk
The company’s only significant interest-bearing asset/liability is the intercompany payable which bears interest at 7.35%
per annum.
The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the exposure to interest rates for the intercompany loan account.
The analysis is prepared assuming that the liability at the reporting date was outstanding for the whole year. If interest rates
had been 50 basis points (0.5%) higher/lower and all other variables were held constant, the company’s loss for the period
ended 30 June 2017, would decrease /increase.
Capital Risk Management
The Company reviews their total capital employed on a regular basis and makes use of several indicative ratios which are appropriate to the nature of the company’s operations and consistent with conventional industry measures. The principal ratios
used in this review are:
• Gearing, defined as net debt divided by total capital employed; and
• Return on capital employed, defined as underlying operating profit before tax divided by average capital employed.
27. RELATED PARTIES
In the agreement between Msinsi Holdings SOC Ltd and Umgeni Water, Umgeni Water is able to nominate the majority of directors to the Board of Directors of Msinsi Holdings SOC Ltd. Umgeni Water therefore, exerts significant influence with the result
that Umgeni Water and Msinsi Holding SOC Ltd can be regarded as related parties.
Material Related Party Transactions and Balances
Umgeni Water
Net Intercompany receivable- current
Loan Account
Interest paid
Environmental Management Fees

6 965 348
2 025 768
931 471
37 000 000

7 433 971
2 474 785
873 517
33 127 000

Net Intercompany payable - Non Current

11 015 602

12 296 490

28. RETIREMENT BENEFITS
Defined Contribution Plan
The company contributes to a defined contribution plan which is governed by the Pension Fund Act (No.24 of 1956). The only
obligation of the company is to make the specified contribution to the scheme. The total contributions as at
30 June 2017, amounted to R 2 302 081.00 (2016: R 2 020 986.95).
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29. FAIR VALUE ADJUSTMENTS
This note provides information about how the Company determines fair value of various financial assets and liabilities. Fair
values of financial assets are measured at fair value on a recurring basis. Biological assets are measured at the fair value at the
end of each reporting period. There have been no transfers between level 1 and 2 during the period.

Financial Assets/Liabilities Fair value as at
Fair value as at
Fair value
30 June 2017
30 June
Hierarchy
			
Inputs
Biological Assets
4 244 242
4 910 689
Level 2

Valuation
Techniques

Unobservable
Inputs

Auction prices

N/A

Auction prices for similar assets in similar condition.
The carrying amount of the following assets and liabilities are not fair valued on a recurring basis as they are considered to
approximate fair value.
FINANCIAL ASSETS
Related party - Current
Trade and other receivables

4 939 580
2 335 868
7 275 448

4 959 186
1 557 222
6 516 408

11 015 602
6 557 608
17 573 210

12 296 490
3 903 196
16 199 686

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Related party - Non Current
Trade and other payables
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30. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS
The directors of the company who are executives of Umgeni Water do not receive any director’s remuneration from the
company.
Details of the Remuneration of Directors of Msinsi Holdings (SOC) Ltd are disclosed below:
30 June 2017
Designation
SW Gillham
T Hlongwa
C Gamede
S Shabalala
M Ndlovu
Dr B Mkhize

Non - Executive
Non - Executive
Non - Executive
Independent Non - Executive
Independent Non - Executive
Independent Non - Executive

Salary

Benefits

Other

Total

-

-

96 205
96 205
103 530
295 940

96 205
96 205
103 530
295 940

Salary

Benefits

Other

Total

-

-

22 477
23 187
66 983
112 647

22 477
23 187
66 983
112 647

30 June 2016
Designation
SW Gillham
T Hlongwa
C Gamede
S Shabalala
M Ndlovu
Dr B Mkhize
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31. PRESCRIBED OFFICER’S EMOLUMENTS
Details of the Remuneration of Prescribed Officers of Msinsi Holdings (SOC) Ltd are disclosed below:
Prescribed officers
30 June 2017
M Dlamini
SN Naguran

Designation
Executive
Executive
-

Salary
177 441
993 769
1 171 210

Benefits
-

Other
45 026
178 406
223 432

Total
222 467
1 172 175
1 394 642

Designation
Executive

Salary
847 946

Benefits
232 295

Other
-

Total
1 080 241

30 June 2016
SN Naguran
32. POTENTIAL LOSS OF REVENUE
The land claim at Shongweni Dam and Game Reserve has been concluded and Umgeni Water awaits the finalisation of the
handover to the Zwelibomvu Community Trust. The success of the land claim will result in a loss of revenue generated from this
reserve. Shongweni Dam and Game Reserve generates 2.8 % of the total operating revenue of the company.
33. GOING CONCERN
The Annual Financial Statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to a going concern. This
basis presumes that funds will be available to finance future operations and that the realisation of assets and settlement of
liabilities, contingent obligations and commitments will occur in the ordinary course of business.
34. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
There is a pending dispute regarding an alleged agreement for the sale of 3 (2 adult buffalo and 1 calf) buffalo between Msinsi
Holdings (SOC) Ltd and a company engaged to capture and transfer buffalo from Shongweni Dam to Albert Falls Dam. The
costs cannot be estimated.
35. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
There is a pending litigation matter between Msinsi Holdings (SOC) Ltd and SWASEA Adventure and Watersports. Summons
were served to Msinsi Holdings (SOC) Ltd after year end relating to conditions which existed before year end. This matter will
be further investigated and the outcome will be informed by the legal team.
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(12 854 245)

(5 873 489)

3 310 407
787 580
294 360
(741 880)
975 396
(327 493)
(158 471)

2 222 218
(691 425)
189 705
(1 676 392)
899 509
425 011
1 347 686

(778 646)
468 623
2 654 412
(46 813)
(6 883 802)

(1 202 531)
(6 205 098)
123 542
158 606
(10 282 660)

36. CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS
Loss for the year
Adjustments for:
Depreciation
Fair Value (Loss)/Gain
Amortisation
Finance income
Finance Cost
(Profit)/Loss on sale of game
Movements in provisions
Changes in working capital:
Trade and other receivables
Net intercompany receivables
Trade and other payables
Movement in corporate social investments

37. FRUITLESS AND WASTEFUL EXPENDITURE
The company has incurred the following Fruitless and Wasteful Expenditure from 1 July 2016 to 30 June 2017:
Opening balance at 1 July 2016
Fruitless and wasteful expenditure relating to current year
Less: amounts to be recovered
Less: amounts condoned by appropriate authority
Closing balance 30 June 2017

6 437
(2 021)
4 416

7 345
(3 115)
(4 230)
-

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure amounting to R 6 437 relates to interest charged for the late payment of utility accounts.
Internal controls are being reviewed and stepped up and interest will not be paid unless it is validated in terms of supporting
the business requirements which were unavoidable.
38. IRREGULAR EXPENDITURE
The company has incurred the following Irregular Expenditure from 1 July 2016 to 30 June 2017:
Opening balance 1 July 2016
Less Amounts recovered
Non-compliance with SCM Requirements
Closing Balance 30 June 2017

1 952
(1 952)
1 588 334
1 588 334

10 736
(8 784)
1 952

Significant irregular expenditure relates to the capture and transportation of the buffalo in Shongweni Dam and Game Reserve.
The buffalo was to be captured and transferred to Albert Falls Dam. An investigation was carried out by management and once
the Board approves the irregular expenditure incurred, the funds will be recovered from the responsible parties where
applicable. A further amount of R555 249 was identified as irregular expenditure due to the Supply Chain Management policy
not being adhered to.
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39. CORRECTION OF ERRORS
The error relates to depreciation on Property, plant and equipment and amortisation of intangible assets being understated in
the prior year by R 242 835 and R 2 902 respectively. The effect of the correction of the error on the financial position for the
2016 financial year is as follows:
Effect of Statement of Comprehensive Income
Increase in depreciation
Increase in amortisation of intangible asset
Increase in comprehensive loss for the year

-

242 835
2 902
(245 737)

Effect on Statement of Financial Position
Increase in Accumulated Depreciation
Increase in Accumulated Amortisation
Decrease in Retained Income

-

(242 835)
(2 902)
245 737

Prior year figures have been restated accordingly to correct this error.

40. RECLASSIFICATION OF OPENING BALANCES

For the prior year under Trade and Other Receivables the amounts were reclassified as follows:

Trade Receivable
Deposits
Accrued Income
Prepaid Expense

116

Restated
90 401
147 757
122 245
16 800

Movement
33 998
(173 043)
122 245
16 800

Prior Year
56 403
320 800
-
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2016 - Restated

331 210
1 718 167
2 541 788
212 904
1 585 261
2 375 432
54 552
37 000 000
489 279
403 787
3 203 080
49 915 460

394 085
2 325 835
2 897 144
166 013
1 689 732
2 481 840
25 140
33 127 000
620 992
610 868
2 822 255
47 160 904

745 917
1 725 080
2 470 997

656 639
1 141 330
1 797 969

(787 580)

691 425

1 047 996
294 360
24 488
844 333
368 060
295 940
28 174
95 873
15 293
80 370
3 310 407
940 227
6 185
5 344
121 497
1 944 775
33 986 501
25 366
1 068 675
908 272
1 280 644
46 492
2 523
287 793
86 258
392 499
217 870
150 948

756 519
189 705
11 703
912 400
360 359
112 647
52 680
116 603
105 990
2 222 218
184
1 250
126 159
2 015 355
31 202 872
148 440
1 004 991
91 610
1 740 952
83 344
2 421
280 441
47 223
435 927
198 070
148 486

Revenue
Boat Registration - Eco Tourism
Campsites- Eco - Tourism
Chalets/Lodges - Eco Tourism
Conferences - Eco Tourism
Eco - Tourism - Other
Gate Revenue - Eco Tourism
Hunting and Game Sales
Environmental Management Fees
Special Events Area - Eco Tourism
Tented Accommodation - Eco Tourism
Wild Card Revenue - Eco Tourism

Other Operating Income
Rental Income
Sundry Income

Other Operating Gains
Fair Value Adjustment
Other operating expenses
Advertising and Promotions
Amortisation
Animal expenses
Audit fees
Bank charges
Directors Emoluments
Directors Expense
Conferences expenses
Conference - local
Consulting fees
Depreciation
Loss of Rhino Poached
Environmental Education
Displays/exhibitions
Staff Bursary
Electricity/Water and Rates
Salaries & Wages
Events
Fuel
Game Count costs
Alien Plant
Gas Supplies
Hunting
Insurance
Kiosk Purchases
Laundry and Cleaning
Lease rentals on operating lease
Lease of office equipment
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125 014
50 350
710
338 607
290 106
20 187
124 041
961
9 148 548
514 891
18 163
1 334 045
293 199
61 323
169 842
251 479
560 492
414 621
376 026
660 214
405 486
808 399
375 743
64 219 606

877 694
110 835
425 011
525
274 665
233 988
100 447
133 479
6 654 722
195 105
972 140
244 782
39 952
418 323
151 822
510 388
67 713
123 331
272 482
157 185
929 108
1 038 426
56 300 673

Operating Loss before Net finance Income/Cost

(12 620 729)

(6 650 375)

Finance Income
Finance Cost
Total Comprehensive Loss for the year

741 880
(975 396)
(12 854 245)

1 676 392
(899 509)
(5 873 493)

Legal costs
Licenses
Loss on Sale of Game
Postage
Printing and Stationery
Protective Clothing and Uniforms
Public Relations
Body Corporate Levies
Rent paid
Repairs and Maintenance
Staff Recruitment
Security levy (PSIRA)
Private Security
Skills Development Levy
Consumables
Staff Welfare
Subscriptions and Membership
Telephone and Fax
Staff Training & Development
Travel and Accommodation- local
Visitor facilities
WCA Contributions
Wild Card expenses
Sundry expenses
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Employee Wellness through Nature Poem
Breathe
Breathe pure oxygen into your lungs and nourish them
Consume the wholeness and feel the wellness
Inhale the purity, see the beauty
This is what you came for
The birds come to dance and play
To teach their little ones how to survive
It’s a shot in the dark, but they’ll make it

Listen
Listen to the fish as they paddle in the water
Be acquainted with the sounds of the bass
Wonder what they’ve been doing lately
This is what you came for

Watch
Watch the sun at noon as you match with its rhythm
Go beyond horizons and find Love in the sky
Relive the joy you gained from before
This is what you came for
You came to Msinsi.

Who is Msinsi?
Msinsi Resorts and Game Reserves is your partner in growth and wellness
We offer our clients a unique recreation and leisure experience
Wholly owned by Umgeni Water, we have access to the most exclusive locations
Offering captivating scenery and engaging wildlife
Safe secure zones for hosting corporate wellness initiatives
Your staff will leave refreshed, re-invigorated and realigned
Our dedicated and trained staff will assist you from the moment you pick up the phone
We can tailormake products that will suit your needs and your bottom line
Bringing happiness and hope to overworked employees
So come to Msinsi, the Eden of KwaZulu-Natal
You may never want to leave.
By Sphamandla Zondo - Human Resources Intern

Reconnecting with nature poem
Reconnecting with nature
So just as bees collecting nectar
Msinsi is a connector
For the forgotten nature
Still yet we miss the picture
Of really what nature is
By Nkanyiso Zibula - Junior Ranger -Albert Falls Dam

120

Msinsi Annual Report 2017

MSINSI RESORTS & GAME RESERVES
Head Office - Hillcrest
Tel: +27(0)31 765 7724
Email: info@msinsi.co.za, Website: www.msinsi.co.za
Unit 1 & 2, Block C, 18 Old Main Road, Hillcrest, 3610
Private Bag X1020, Hillcrest, 3650

